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Financial Results

| am pleased to report the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2014. During the year, the Group achieved a profit from operations
before valuation changes in investment properties of HK$502.7 million,
representing an increase of approximately 15.4% compared with the
previous financial year. The increase was mainly due to increase of rental

income from iISQUARE compared to the previous financial year.

Valuation gains on investment properties for the financial year ended
31 March 2014 amounted to HK$965.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$1,403.6 million compared with the previous financial year.
The valuation gains will only affect the accounting profit or loss but not the
cash flow of the Group.

The Group recorded a profit attributable to equity shareholders of
HK$1,382.3 million, compared with a profit attributable to equity shareholders
of HK$2,733.6 million for the previous financial year.

Business Review and Commentary on Financial
Results

iISQUARE is a commercial complex housing retail, entertainment, food
and beverage establishments. Rental income from iISQUARE amounted
to approximately HK$603.1 million for the financial year ended 31 March
2014, representing an increase of approximately 16.8% compared with the
previous financial year. The occupancy rate at 31 March 2014 was 100%
compared with approximately 97.8% at 31 March 2013.

Capital Structure and Liquidity
The total equity for the Group at 31 March 2014 was HK$13,441.3 million,
compared with HK$12,455.0 million at 31 March 2013.

The Company repaid HK$200 million in October 2013 for the remaining
balance of the bank loan granted by the facility agreement entered on
20 October 2006. On 7 October 2013, the Company entered into a new
facility agreement with a bank comprising of a 3-year term loan facility
of up to HK$200 million and a 3-year revolving loan facility of up to
HK$100 million. At 31 March 2014, the banking facilities were utilised to the
extent of HK$200 million and the Group’s gearing ratio was 1.5% (calculated
as total bank loans over total equity).
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Business Model and Strategies
The Group’s business is property investment in Hong Kong. The Group
generates and preserves its value through being an investor in the property

market.

To accomplish this, the Group strives to nurture growth from its existing
properties through prudent management. Whilst the Group generally
maintains a prudent and conservative approach towards property
investment, it also seeks to exploit opportunities for future development. With
the aim of securing stable and recurring returns, the Group has adopted
very stringent investment criteria and targets only high quality projects and

investments.

The Group recognises the importance of sound financial strength to support
sustainable growth and future development and hence, its fundamental
strategy is to maintain a solid balance sheet with strong cash flow and a low

gearing ratio.

Outlook

Considering retail business could be affected by external economic
environment, volume of visitor arrival and their spending habits, management
will carefully evaluate their impact on iISQUARE. The Group will adopt
appropriate leasing strategies for securing suitable tenants to enhance the
leasing performance of iISQUARE. Barring unforeseen circumstances, it is
anticipated that rental income from iISQUARE and the results from operations

of the Group will continue to be satisfactory for the coming financial year.
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Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of shareholders of the Company will be held on
Wednesday, 3 September 2014. For the purpose of determining the identity
of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 1 September 2014 to Wednesday, 3 September 2014, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected.
All transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 pm on Friday,
29 August 2014.

Dividend

The Board is pleased to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.60 per share
for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$0.55 per share). As the
Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.55 per share during the year
(2013: HK$0.45 per share), the total distribution will be HK$1.15 per share
for the year (2013: HK$1.00 per share). Subject to the shareholders’ approval
on the proposed final dividend at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,
the register of members of the Company will be closed for the purpose
of determining entitlement to the said final dividend from Wednesday,
10 September 2014 to Friday, 12 September 2014, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 pm on Monday, 8 September
2014. The proposed final dividend will be paid on Monday, 22 September
2014 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
on Friday, 12 September 2014 following approval at the Annual General

Meeting.
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MEESCAL o fboh - AREBEHDEEE T2 MAH discretionary bonuses to its staff. Sponsorships for necessary outside

ZINEHEISFREE © training courses are also provided by the Group to its staff.

TE AANERREZFCHRIRAEEBRE—F2 Finally, on behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our staff for their devotion

BN FHERMBUARE - and dedication in the past year.
e Cheong Hooi Hong

EEE Chairman

B ZZE—NFXAZ+<H Hong Kong, 26 June 2014
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iISQUARE

iISQUARE is located in the heart of Tsim Sha Tsui at the intersection of
Nathan Road and Peking Road. It is the first one-stop shopping and
entertainment complex linked to Tsim Sha Tsui MTR station. This complex
provides 56,000 square metres of space comprising a shopping podium,

cinema box and tower.

The podium is a vibrant new hub for world-class fashion and lifestyle brands,
complemented by five grand cineplexes, including a 448-seat digital IMAX
theatre. ISQUARE also features fine-dining restaurants and lifestyle services

in its iconic tower.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises its responsibilities to shareholders and is therefore
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. To
accomplish this, the Company has reviewed its practices and procedure,

and identified and formalised appropriate measures and policies.

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Company complied
with all the code provisions, where applicable, set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing

Rules”), except for the deviations as disclosed hereunder:

Code Provision A.1.8: Appropriate insurance cover

in respect of legal action against directors should be
arranged

Currently, the Company does not have insurance cover for legal action
against its Directors. The Board believes that with the current internal control
system and the close supervision of the management, the Directors’ risk of
being sued or getting involved in litigation in their capacity as Directors of the
Company is relatively low. Nevertheless, the Board will review the need for

insurance cover from time to time.

Code Provision A.2.1: The roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separated and performed by two
individuals

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong is both the Chairman and chief executive of the
Company. The Board of Directors considers that the current structure
does not have any adverse effect on the Company and believes that this
structure enables the Group to make and implement decisions promptly and

efficiently.

@ Associated International Hotels Limited slE¢ RSB EBR QT
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

Code Provision A.6.7: Independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should
not only give the board and any committees on

which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise
and varied backgrounds and qualifications through
regular attendance and active participation, but also
attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders

The attendance of the independent non-executive directors and
non-executive director of the Company at Board meetings, Board committee
meetings and annual general meeting during the year was in general
satisfactory except that one of the independent non-executive directors
was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on

3 September 2013 due to an unexpected business engagement.

Code Provision B.1.5: Remuneration details of senior
management should be disclosed by band in annual
reports

The remuneration details of the senior management are not disclosed
by band in the annual report. The Board of Directors notes that none
of the senior management members is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration or related to the remuneration committee members (who
are authorised to collectively determine the remuneration of the senior
management). Also, the disclosure of such information may cause undue
comparison and discontent among staff members, and would unnecessarily
provide highly sensitive and confidential information to competitors and other
third parties looking to recruit the senior management. In light of the above,
the Directors are of the view that the disclosure of such information would
neither provide pertinent information in furtherance of corporate governance,

nor be in the interests of the shareholders.

Code Provision F.1.3: The company secretary

should report to the board chairman and/or the chief
executive

Instead of reporting to the Chairman (who is also the chief executive of the
Company), the company secretary reports directly to the deputy chairman.
The Board considers that this reporting line does not prevent the Chairman/
chief executive from understanding/managing the operation of the Company
or discharging his duties, for the Chairman and deputy chairman have
ongoing discussion on business affairs, in particular corporate governance

and financial issues.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its code for dealing in securities in the Company by its Directors (“Model
Code”). Specific enquiry has been made of all Directors of the Company
as to whether they have complied with or whether there has been any
non-compliance with the Model Code, and all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the

financial year ended 31 March 2014.

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors during the financial year ended 31 March 2014

comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi

Mr Cheong Sim Lam

Miss Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Director

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam

Mr Lee Chung

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (who is both the Chairman and chief executive of the
Company), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam are brothers. Miss Cheong Chong Ling is the daughter
of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim and the niece of Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong,
Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam. Some of the Directors who are

members of the Cheong family own businesses outside the Group together.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Under the corporate governance structure, the Board of Directors is as
a whole accountable to its shareholders in the Group’s performance.
It is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group, which
include formulation of objectives, overall strategies and business plans;
and overseeing the financial and management performance, corporate

governance and internal control of the Group.

With the objective of focusing more attentively on specific areas, the
Board has established three committees, namely the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee. Non-executive
Directors are invited to serve on these Board committees according to the
benefits brought by their participation in view of their individual experience
and skills. To assist the committees in discharging their roles adequately,
each committee is provided with a committee policy, setting out guidelines
for its members to follow in decision-making. Duties and authorities of the
committees are also set out in their respective terms of reference. To keep
the Board fully informed of their works and findings, these committees are

required to report to the Board on a regular basis.

For the purpose of efficient operation, the Board relies on the management
for the day-to-day operation of the Group’s business. The management has
to implement the objectives, strategies and plans adopted by the Board
and report to the Board regularly. The Board monitors the work of the
management whilst the management provides an indispensable support to
the Board operation and Group’s development. Given the close collaboration
between the Board and the management, the duties, power and functions of

the Board and the management are clearly laid down and defined in writing.

Delegating its functions and authorities to the Board committees and the
management does not absolve the Board from its overall responsibility for
the governance of the Group. The Board at all times assumes the ultimate

responsibility for the Group’s management and operation.
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Board of Directors (continued)

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows of the Group.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 March 2014 on a going concern basis, the Directors have adopted
suitable accounting policies and, other than the new and revised accounting
policies which are first effective for the year under review as disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements, applied them consistently with
those applied to the financial statements of the previous financial year. The

Directors have also made judgements and estimates which are reasonable.

The Directors of the Company are accountable for keeping proper records
which reflect with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group. The statement of the Auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the

Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 46 to 47.

Six board meetings, of which four were regular board meetings, and one
general meeting were held during the financial year ended 31 March 2014.

Individual attendance of the Directors is set out below:

HESHRE BEEHESRRH
Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

Exges REXE

Directors Board Meetings General Meeting
HITEFE Executive Directors
SEVRIR () Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 6/6 11
SEEMIEE(FIEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 6/6 11
B A Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 4/6 1/1
B A Mr Cheong Sim Lam 6/6 1/1
SEHRIS/NMA Miss Cheong Chong Ling 6/6 1/1
FHITEE Non-executive Director
SRR SEA Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 6/6 11
BUINTESE Independent Non-executive Directors
AEEEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 6/6 11
PhEH %A Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 6/6 1/1
EX/N LS Mr Lee Chung 6/6 0N
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Directors

Board of Directors (continued)

To enable the Directors to maintain the necessary knowledge and skills to
perform their roles, the Company places an emphasis on Directors’ training.
During the year under review, all Directors were furnished with quarterly
memoranda/circulars so as to regularly refresh their knowledge relating to
legal and regulatory obligations. To keep the Directors abreast of the latest
developments regarding regulatory and legal requirements, the company
secretary also provided updates to the Board as and when necessary.
During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Company organised
in-house training courses in relation to Directors’ duties and responsibilities
for the Directors and reviewed the adequacy of training received by them.
The Directors are encouraged to attend relevant external training sessions,
seminars, forums and conferences on their own with all related expenses

reimbursable by the Company, subject to the Company’s policy.

Training received by the Directors during the financial year ended 31 March
2014 is set out below:

HERE

G %
Hwe  KEEH

Receiving

Attending

courses/

briefings

from company

seminars/ Reading secretary and/or

conferences materials other executives

HITEE Executive Directors

EIRR A (/) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) N v
BB E(FIEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) N J
SR A Mr Cheong Keng Hooi N J
BEEEL Mr Cheong Sim Lam N N
BRI/ E Miss Cheong Chong Ling \ N
FHHITEE Non-executive Director

il tas Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles v J
HUHMTEE Independent Non-executive Directors

AEEEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul N J
hEB kA Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam vV N
SV Mr Lee Chung J N

i BAPARRAEIIEEMNBEES - QEGIRARIA
QE=BENEMEH -

Note: The above-mentioned training is relevant to (1) corporate governance, (2) rules
and regulations and (3) Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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Non-executive Director and

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Director is appointed for a term of one year whilst
Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for the period
commencing from the conclusion of one annual general meeting to the
conclusion of the following annual general meeting. According to the
Company’s Articles of Association, they are required to retire by rotation, but

remain eligible for re-election, at least once every three years.

The Company has received confirmation from each Independent
Non-executive Director about his independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent. One of the
Independent Non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise as

required under the Listing Rules.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee and the audit committee, each
with its written terms of reference. Each committee is required to report
back to the Board and keep the Board fully informed of its decisions and
recommendations unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on its

ability to do so.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain
Directors and staff of suitable calibre by remunerating them at a competitive
level. In order to achieve this, the Board has established a remuneration
committee. Under the Group’s remuneration policy, no Director or his/her
associates are allowed to be involved in decisions relating to his/her own

remuneration.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The remuneration committee currently comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors and one Non-executive Director. They are
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles,
Mr Lee Chung and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam. The main duties of the
remuneration committee are to review and make recommendations to the
Board on the terms of reference of the committee; to assist the Company
in formulating remuneration policy and structure for Directors and senior
management; to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals; to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior management; to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Directors; to consider salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group; to review and approve
compensation payable to Executive Directors and senior management for
any loss or termination of office or appointment; and to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors
for misconduct. Details of the remuneration committee’s authority and
duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of reference are
published on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (the “HKEX”") and are also available upon written request to

the company secretary.

Remuneration of individual Executive Directors and senior management is
determined, with delegated responsibility, by the remuneration committee on
the recommendations of the chief executive (except Mr Cheong Hooi Hong
whose remuneration package is determined by the remuneration committee
alone) on an annual basis. The remuneration committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the review of remuneration of
Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive Directors annually.
For all other staff, it is the Executive Directors who fix their remuneration
packages on the recommendations of their respective department heads on an

annual basis.

Annual Report 2013-2014 3§ e




T¥ERRE Corporate Governance Report

EEEBTNZERS @)
FMZEES @)
EEHMPREETREMAT - REREA
A MEE  AEEEE  EENTIEE &
ERBERH TSR - TETEEERASRE M
BINTME  FMEE8eNRTESRTE
R)EEHERRSETERR - AEELE - E
AKRR - TEMHEMBE -

BR7IE N E 116 B SRR 27 R
G REEN EA AR SRS -

RYKEHE

REBE-Z-—NF=RA=1+—HIMBFEA
FHEZEEHBR=ZRER U AR R
BEMEZEENBEGEFELRIS RAEZTSIR

HE#  ERMNEETRTESFNREEEARN
BN WL IEITE S MBI IR TE S R0 %
AEESFLESE -

BEFMEZBeXBHFEER BN

Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The amount of remuneration payable to the Directors is determined by
reference to a number of factors, including remuneration paid by comparable
companies, the Group’s results as well as the work-load, responsibility and
time commitment of the Directors. When determining the remuneration
packages of senior management and all other staff, the remuneration
committee and Executive Directors, as the case may be, take(s) into
consideration the factors including market conditions, the Group’s resullts,

individual performance, job nature and duties.

Other than the retirement scheme as set out in note 27 to the financial
statements on page 116, the Group does not have any long-term incentive

scheme.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the remuneration committee
held three meetings and reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s remuneration policy and the terms of reference of the
committee; considered and fixed the remuneration packages of Executive
Directors and senior management and made recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of both the Non-executive Director and Independent

Non-executive Directors.

The attendance record of each remuneration committee member is set out

below:

HEERAE AERHEERLRE

Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
A8 E(ZE2FE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 3/3
SARRE A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 3/3
PFESEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3
EN /NS Mr Lee Chung 3/3
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee currently comprises two Executive Directors
and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The members are
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (committee chairman), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim,
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam and Mr Lee Chung.

The main duties of the nomination committee are to review and provide
recommendations to the Board on the nomination policy, terms of reference
of the committee and the Board diversity policy; to review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to assess the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors; to assess the mix
in terms of gender, age and qualifications required on the Board; to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships; and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive; and on the
need of setting measurable objectives for implementing the Board diversity
policy. Details of the nomination committee’s authority and duties are set out
in the terms of reference. The said terms of reference are published on the
websites of the Company and the HKEx and are also available upon written

request to the company secretary.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the nomination committee
held three meetings and reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
on the nomination policy, the terms of reference of the committee, the Board
diversity policy, the need of setting measurable objectives for implementing
the Board diversity policy and the necessary mix required on the Board;
made recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and composition
of the Board; assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors; and made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointments
of the Independent Non-executive Directors, Non-executive Director and

Directors who were subject to retirement by rotation.

Annual Report 2013-2014 3§ G




PEERFE Corporate Governance Report

BEEEETHNZEEZ W)
REZES @)
ARREAUENESRAS  BEEERER
SESSENEIEEN  FEBEEELHES
B RALASE - TR EEEHARTNEE - R
WmREERRENERT  EEES T/ EHT
EEMEBAE - RALTME BERSTA
REIEM R OISR o BEL
ST ERAR A RENIRRAMAEES - T
BHMIUAR S BEE Y FE AFABHKER
B MBACR  TEEREMEATELRE
RIS (Tt BRI E Al AR A RIS B 5 -
AR - BERASTRE  ARFEE
HEEFRIEEE  EEEBYALRASM
FEREE -

BERAE  ARFCHIEEEEZ TR -
ZERBFRAZE AR  FREEE=
TEREEEMFMAETHE  MAESEE
EHRTAAREETS S TCRETRRENER -

EFEXHEZLENRR - B EFTEHE
EFENENZEREZTLRBEAHIERZ T
RIERHBER  ARZRERRNEFEERKE-

EREENEFAIRARBEMERDAA -
MARE()SEFARB=FRIWERT R
ERENEFABEEE  RINVEFEEFIK
EMEEEELMENES A& NABRREFK
SR REAERERMEZENESEE
TRBERARE (LT REREFRG)EME - I
HZEERHAFREET -

Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

On making recommendations to the Board for re-appointment of a
Director, the nomination committee needs to consider not only the skills
and experience of the Director concerned, but also his/her value to the
Company, so as to ensure that there is a balanced composition of the
Board. Board diversity is a key consideration in Board selection process. For
the Company, it is more than an issue of gender, it also focuses on age and
professional experience. Selection of female candidates or candidates of a
particular age group or qualifications to join the Board is, in part, dependent
on the pool of candidates possessing necessary skills, knowledge and
experience. Board appointment is mainly based on merit and contribution
likely brought by the chosen candidates. The Company believes that, with
the benefits of diversity, it can have a better understanding to the needs and

expectations of its stakeholders, in particular shoppers and tenants.

To reflect the above, the Company has adopted a Board diversity policy, in
which the nomination committee is required to assess the mix in terms of
gender, age and qualifications required on the Board; and to recommend to
the Board any matters in relation to Board diversity or implementation of the

policy.

Although the Board supports the principle of diversity, it currently does not
intend to fix a diversity quota for Board appointment or set a short term
objective on gender diversity, for such policies may compromise on the

calibre of Directors.

The process for re-election of a Director is set out in the Company’s Articles
of Association, which requires that (i) every Director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and a retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election; and (i) Directors who are appointed by the
Board as an addition to the Board shall retire at the next annual general
meeting whilst those appointed to fill casual vacancies shall retire at the next
general meeting (instead of the next annual general meeting) and Directors

S0 appointed are eligible for re-election.

a Associated International Hotels Limited S8 EB 5% /5 & PR A 7



DEEBRHE Corporate Governance Report

BEEEETHNEET W)
REZEE @)

EREZEENBHFEER 2T ¢

Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
The attendance record of each nomination committee member is set out

below:

HESHEAR FERHEERRY

Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
EREKE(ZEEFE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (committee chairman) 2/3
EBME A Mr Cheong Kheng Lim 3/3
AZEEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 3/3
PFESEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3
EN/N S Mr Lee Chung 3/3
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Audit Committee

The primary responsibilities of the audit committee of the Company are
to make recommendations to the Board on appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor; to approve remuneration, terms of
engagement and handle all issues relating to resignation or dismissal in
respect of the external auditor; to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of its audit process; to
discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of audit and reporting
obligations before commencement of audit; to develop and implement
policy on engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services;
to oversee financial reporting system and internal control procedures;
to review financial information of the Group; to review arrangements
employees of the Company can use in confidence to raise concerns about
possible improprieties and ensure proper arrangements are in place for
fair and independent investigation and for follow-up action; to act as the
key representative body for overseeing the Company’s relations with its
external auditor; and to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the terms of reference of the committee. Details of the audit committee’s
authority and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of
reference are published on the websites of the Company and the HKEx and

are also available upon written request to the company secretary.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The audit committee currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors and the one Non-executive Director. The members are
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles,

Mr Lee Chung and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the audit committee met
three times and made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment
of the external auditor, considered and approved the terms of engagement
of the external auditor; reviewed the half-year and annual financial
statements of the Group, including integrity and significant financial reporting
judgements contained therein, before submission to the Board for approval;
discussed with the external auditor the nature and scope of the audit before
commencement; met the external auditor without the presence of executive
board members of the Company; reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system; and considered and made recommendations to
the Board on the arrangements for employees to raise concerns about

improprieties, the audit policy and the terms of reference of the committee.

The audit committee also agreed with the external auditor on the scope
and extent of the interim review before commencement and ensured the
Company’s compliance with its policy on engagement of the external auditor

to supply non-audit services to the Group.

The attendance record of each audit committee member is set out below:

HESRRE FERHEEERE

Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
AEREE(ZESEE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 3/3
il Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 3/3
B EE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3
E/NE Mr Lee Chung 3/3
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Directors

Board Committees (continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

Given the importance of good corporate governance to the success of
the Company, the Board is directly responsible for performing corporate
governance duties. The duties set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the

CG Code are included in its terms of reference.

Among the six board meetings held during the financial year ended
31 March 2014, two of the meetings covered issues relating to corporate
governance. At the meetings, the Board reviewed the general code of
conduct for employees and Directors; monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; considered
and monitored corporate governance policies and practices with particular
regard to the compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and
reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in

the corporate governance report.

Individual attendance of the Directors at the said two board meetings is set

out below:

HEERAE FAERHEERLRE

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HITEF Executive Directors

ERRIB S (£ /E) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 2/2
SEEMWEE(BIEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 2/2
EIE S & Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 1/2
SBAAFLAE Mr Cheong Sim Lam 2/2
ERTS/NME Miss Cheong Chong Ling 2/2
FHITEE Non-executive Director

il tas Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
HUHBTEE Independent Non-executive Directors

AEg%E Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 2/2
PhEBhA Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
EN/N S Mr Lee Chung 2/2
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Auditor of the Company,
KPMG, provided audit services of a value of approximately HK$685,000
to the Group. KPMG also provided non-audit services of a value of
approximately HK$226,000 to the Group, which included HK$53,000
and HK$168,000 being charges for tax services and the interim review

respectively.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal control system
and reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures and systems are in place to
safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition; to maintain proper
accounting records and to ensure accuracy of financial information and
compliance with applicable statutes, rules and regulations. Defined roles,
responsibilities and reporting lines have been established. However, these
procedures and systems are designed to minimise and mitigate the risk of
failure in operation and achievement of the Company’s objectives and can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against errors, losses or

fraud.

The Board, with the assistance of the audit committee of the Company,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Group during the financial year ended 31 March 2014. The review
covered all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, and risk management functions. The Board considers that the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function are
adequate. The Board is not aware of any significant areas of concern which

should be brought to the attention of the shareholders.
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Shareholders’ Relations

To enhance its accountability and promote transparency, the Company is

committed to maintaining channels for communication with its shareholders.

Providing information

Corporate communications are prepared in both English and Chinese
versions and in plain language so as to make the documents understandable.
Such documents are despatched to shareholders and released to the public

domain in a timely manner.

Information released by the Company to the HKEx is posted on the

Company’s website (http://aihl.etnet.com.hk/ca-calendar-e.html) thereafter.

The Articles of Association of the Company which spell out shareholders’
rights can be found on the websites of the Company and the HKEx. During
the financial year ended 31 March 2014, other than those changes arising
automatically as a result of certain deeming provisions contained in the
new Companies Ordinance which came into effect on 3 March 2014, there
have been no changes made to the Articles of Association of the Company.
However, following the implementation of the new Companies Ordinance,
the Directors propose to seek approval of the shareholders at the annual
general meeting to be held on 3 September 2014 for the adoption of the
new Articles of Association of the Company to, among other things, bring the
constitution of the Company in line with provisions of the new Companies

Ordinance.

The proposed amendments to the existing Articles of Association of the
Company are set out in full in Appendix IV to the circular dated 24 July 2014

which is despatched to shareholders together with this annual report.

Shareholders may at any time make a written request to the company
secretary for the Company’s information to the extent that such information is

publicly available.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

Encouraging participation/interaction

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a forum for face-to-
face communication between shareholders and the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies
to attend, speak and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are
unable to attend. Board members, in particular, the Chairman of the Board
and chairmen of the Board committees, or their delegates, appropriate
management staff and the Company’s external auditor normally attend

annual general meetings to answer shareholders’ questions.

Shareholders are also provided with means by which their inquiries can
be put forward to the Board. Such channels, including designated email

address (aihlcosec@tianteckgroup.com), correspondence address, fax

number and telephone number, are made available on the Company’s
website. Queries relating to shareholders’ own shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s share registrars, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Subject to applicable legislation and regulations, in particular the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of
the Company as amended from time to time, shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”, and each a “Shareholder”) may convene general meetings
and put forward proposals at general meetings. The relevant procedure is

set out below:
To convene an Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
o The Company holds a general meeting as its AGM every year. This is

usually held in September.

o If the Company fails to hold an AGM (which is unlikely to occur) after:

(@) 15 months have elapsed since the date of the previous AGM
for the year 2014; or

(b) 6 months have elapsed since the end of the Company’s

financial year from the year 2015 onwards;

any Shareholder may apply to the court in Hong Kong which, on such

application, may call or direct the calling of an AGM of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)

To move a resolution at an AGM

Shareholder(s) can make a request to circulate a resolution for an

AGM if they:

(@)  represent at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the

AGM to which the request relates; or

(b)  at least 50 Shareholders who have a right to vote on the

resolution at the AGM to which the request relates.

The request must:

(@  be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;
(o)  identify the proposed resolution;
(c)  be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned; and

(d) be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the
AGM to which the request relates or if later, the time at which

the notice of AGM is despatched.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrars and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will request the Board to include the resolution
in the agenda for the AGM. On the contrary, if the request is verified
as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included
in the agenda for the AGM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
To convene a General Meeting (“GM”)

@ Associated International Hotels Limited S8 EB 5% /5 & PR A 7

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of
all the Shareholders having a right to vote at GMs can request the
Directors to call a GM.

The request:

(@) must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with

at the meeting;

(b)  may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at the meeting;

(c) may consist of several documents in like form;

(d) must be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;
and

(e) must be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrars and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will request the Board to convene a GM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to all
the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the request is verified
as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this

outcome and accordingly, a GM will not be convened as requested.

Directors must call a GM within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement and the meeting so called must
be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the meeting.

If the Directors do not convene a GM as required, the Shareholder(s)
concerned or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves call a GM, and
the meeting so convened must be called for a date not more than
3 months after the date on which the Directors become subject to
the requirement to call a GM. The Company must reimburse any
reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholder(s) requesting the
GM by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to call a GM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)

To propose a person other than a Director of the Company for

election as a Director at a GM, including an AGM

In accordance with its Articles of Association, the Company at the
meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated office by
electing a person thereto. If a Shareholder (other than the person
to be nominated as mentioned hereinafter), who is duly qualified
to attend and vote at the GM for which the notice of intention as
hereinafter described is to be given, wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director of the Company for election as a Director of
the Company at any GM, he/she should sign and deposit a notice of
intention to that effect at 9th Floor, ISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company,
for the attention of the Board together with a notice signed by the
nominated person of his/her willingness to be elected. The minimum
length of period during which such notices are given shall be at least
7 days and the period for lodgement shall commence no earlier than
the day after despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such
election (inclusive of such day) and end no later than 7 days prior to

the date of such GM (the “Lodgement Period”).

To enable the Company to inform Shareholders of the foregoing
proposal, the written notices as mentioned above shall be
accompanied by (i) the information of the nominated person as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and
(i) the written consent of the nominated person to the publication of

his/her personal data.

Relevant procedure and the Lodgement Period for each GM will
be set out in the corresponding circular to be despatched to the

Shareholders.

If the notice is received less than 15 clear days prior to the GM,
the Company will consider adjourning the GM in order to allow
Shareholders at least 14 clear days or 10 clear business days’ notice

of the proposal, whichever is the longer.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

Encouraging participation/interaction (continued)

Circulation of Statement at a GM, including an AGM

° Eligible Shareholders can express their views on a matter mentioned
in a proposed resolution or other business to be dealt with at a GM
in a written statement of not more than 1,000 words and request the
Company to circulate it to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of a

GM. Eligible Shareholders must represent at least:

(a) 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having the

relevant right to vote; or
(o) 50 Shareholders having the relevant right to vote.

o For a statement concerning a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution, “the relevant right to vote” means a right to vote on that
resolution at the meeting to which the request relates. For a statement
concerning other business, “the relevant right to vote” means a right
to vote at the meeting to which the request relates.

° The request must:

(a) be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;

(b) identify the statement to be circulated;

(c) be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned; and

(d) be received by the Company at least 7 days before the meeting

to which it relates.
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IR R EAZ ) Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

SiENZ:Ed B AREHE (E) Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)

RRRE RS (BIERERAFEA S ) EHRME(E) Circulation of Statement at a GM, including an AGM (Continued)

. ZENERARNTRERELREZE - EET . The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrars and
EAAENREZEE KA AREZRK upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
SRENREEEZRAME  EBHAEUT Company will circulate the statement to Shareholders entitled to
BN receive notice of the meeting provided that:

(a) WZEXRSEBREAFAZ (@  ifthe request relates to an AGM,

0] PR E W78 R B iR ER D 0] the statement is received in time to enable the Company
SR N B AR AR R A E to send a copy of the statement at the same time as the
KEBEZHBERA—HT notice of AGM is despatched; or
£

(ii) SR HEREETERKRE (i)  otherwise, the Shareholder(s) concerned have, not
BERESRI7TREGF 26182 later than 7 days before the AGM, deposited a sum
EIFRIE - WA R REE reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
B AR BRIE X By PRt & 2= circulating the statement submitted by the Shareholder(s)
AR - concerned.

(o) WMZBIF RIREEE RS AN (o)  if the request relates to a GM other than an AGM, the
RAE  HERRATERARRERS Shareholder(s) concerned have, not later than 7 days before
BI7RETF—EAEEHAMNFIE - A the GM, deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
XA EE BB AR B AR SRR AT A PR Company’s expenses in circulating the statement submitted by
MEMELEMAY - the Shareholder(s) concerned.

HBR WMEZEKEZBE A TELE AR On the contrary, if the request is verified as not in order or as not

TR B8 R B W B PRt 22 T 8 L 3 AN 4 AR R received in time for the Company to include a copy of the statement

FEXE@EN - SHEBRER KRNI TE in the notice of AGM or the Shareholder(s) concerned has/have failed

(R NETF R AR RIEA S M AR RIEERE A to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for

BHAX(RTER)  HERRGEBRNE the circulation purpose within the time frame (as the case may be),

FER Rl EMA BT REEERR the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and

RAGREMRRELE accordingly, the statement will not be circulated to Shareholders

entitled to receive notice of the meeting.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) have pleasure in
submitting their annual report together with the audited financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Principal Place of Business

Associated International Hotels Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and
principal place of business at 9th Floor, ISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim

Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the

subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) during the financial year is set out in note 4 to the financial

statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the Group’s turnover attributable to the largest customer
and to the five largest customers accounted for 15% and 33% of the
Group’s total turnover respectively. The five largest suppliers of the Group

accounted for less than 30% by value of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these

major customers.
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Financial Statements
The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 48 to 118.

Transfer to Reserves

Profits attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of HK$1,382,298,000
(2013: HK$2,733,580,000) have been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity.

An interim dividend of HK$0.55 per share (2013: HK$0.45 per share) was
paid on 9 January 2014. The Board now recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.60 per share (2013: HK$0.55 per share) in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2014.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$2,790,000 (2013: HK$1,525,000).
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BE&E Fixed Assets

EE B ERNE B ST E A B R ERMIFE13 Movements in fixed assets are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.
REEBRREWZENT - Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are set out as follows:
HERSENEEY Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation

o R BEMAR HEFH

Location Existing use Term of lease

BB B35 B A
NBERDEIBHEN T =5

(hLEEMIER74255%)

iISQUARE Shopping centre Medium
63 Nathan Road,

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

(Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425)

FETEKNE T REEN R A
L TFABRL - —HEBAERI

#HTRLT L2~ L3RLARERT

NEBELEE AT R

(BUE N B 2257 )
Good Luck Industrial Building Workshops and Medium
Unit A on the Ground and 1st Floor, car parking spaces

and Car Parking Spaces Nos.

L1, L2, L3 & L4 on the Ground Floor,

105 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon
(Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 22)

FFEB S0 /NS ~H
Gl

BETFHBR T =2 THRR

EEHET T E-+=5%

(B35 1B 36657 )

Euro Trade Centre Offices Long
5th Floor,

Nos. 13-14 Connaught Road Central and

Nos. 21-23 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

(Marine Lot No. 366)
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Directors

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors
Cheong Hooi Hong
Cheong Kheng Lim
Cheong Keng Hooi
Cheong Sim Lam

Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Director
Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Yau Allen Lee-nam

Lee Chung

In accordance with articles 103 and 104 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and Mr Yau
Allen Lee-nam shall retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming

annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The executive directors (except Miss Cheong Chong Ling) were appointed
to their respective executive offices in the Company for an initial period of
two years effective on 1 January 1986 and their appointments continue after
the said period unless and until either party gives to the other three months’

notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.
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(@ AT

EIEE Cheong Hooi Hong
FEIEM Cheong Kheng Lim
=y Cheong Keng Hooi
ppede) Cheong Sim Lam
SRS Cheong Chong Ling
b Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2014, the directors and chief executives of the Company and
their associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)) had the following interests in the
shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”):

(@ The Company

EERHE
Number of ordinary shares

IHE 1T
Bk BRA7 4B 8
B AR KEER DA e WEZDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
2,073,992 — — 2,073,992 0.58%
24,555,715 1,034,000 — 25,589,715 7.11%
11,759,839 275,280 — 12,035,119 3.34%
1,807,155 24,000 — 1,831,155 0.51%
1,588,000 — — 1,588,000 0.44%
242,000 — 120,000 362,000 0.10%

(5F)(Note)

£ RBMERETAI120,0000 BRREAR QB
A #9120,000 E A% o IRIBEEH GG - EER
SERRARELERMDAER -

Note: The corporate interests of 120,000 shares represent 120,000 ordinary
shares held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken
to be interested in such shares under the SFO.
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EERBESTHAEHEEBMR Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
%~ HEROFNEESWEZRE  Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares

KA ) and Debentures (continued)
b) REBEBRAT (b) Tian Teck Land Limited
R B E
Number of shares
IHE 1T
BnifEs RGHEH
B A= RERER AR B WEZLE
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
EIEE Cheong Hooi Hong 4,035,792 — — 4,035,792 0.85%
SEIBMR Cheong Kheng Lim 46,023,872 115,292 — 46,139,164 9.72%
EmiE Cheong Keng Hooi 26,862,036 1,002,384 — 27,864,420 5.87%
ket Cheong Sim Lam 1,099,504 — — 1,099,504 0.23%
SRS Cheong Chong Ling 412,000 - - 412,000 0.09%
VARG Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2,000 — 115,200 117,200 0.02%
(3£)(Note)
o AREZE TH115,2000% BB EA R AR ATE Note: The corporate interests of 115,200 shares represent 115,200 shares
BH115,2000 8% (5 © IRIEFHEG] - LERE held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken to be
SR R L SR D e o interested in such shares under the SFO.
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(c) REHRAT

sEpElE Cheong Hooi Hong
SEIEMN Cheong Kheng Lim
S 1mE Cheong Keng Hooi
fpedes] Cheong Sim Lam

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (continued)

(c) Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited

EEREE

Number of ordinary shares
HE 81T
EnfEn PR A7 4 8
PN REER mlfEwE By WEZL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
25 — — 25 25%
25 - - 25 25%
25 — — 25 25%
25 - - 25 25%

d) ZERRAR(REBEES)

sEpElE Cheong Hooi Hong
FEIEM Cheong Kheng Lim
S e Cheong Keng Hooi
fEiede Cheong Sim Lam

(d) Yik Fok Investment Holding Company, Limited
(In Members’ Voluntary Liquidation)

EEREE

Number of ordinary shares
HERT
ERER BRA7 A 2,
BN REER DR By WEDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
10 — — 10 0.00005%
10 — — 10 0.00005%
10 — — 10 0.00005%
10 — — 10 0.00005%

B Lt P R E SN - BA R BIZIRE 5 KD
FI2MGFMEBFOBLMBR - HIRBIZEST
AIARAL T X AARR R R FAEHEBRR - B
“E-MFE=ZA=1—H  ARFESF HHTK
ABREBMEA(Z ETRAZER)DLEHREA
NASEARBOAE BT A B RPI BXVEDFTEA
R )M - HHRIRR D BB ERTRAE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the directors and
chief executives of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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TERENEMALTEENIRD Interests and Short Positions of Substantial

MEERONERRAR Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and
Underlying Shares

G iR BE 2 A AR EE NGRS ITIRAEH As at 31 March 2014, other than the interests of the directors and chief

REZRIN  AARERE > WIRBDIKBESE executives of the Company as disclosed above, the Company has been

Bl E336IEH Fa N EacMmERBER  » notified of the following interests in the shares of the Company as recorded

—EUFE=ZA=t+—HEEARARMDEELR in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the

EHT SFO:

HEBITRG

ZERHE BYMBEDE

Percentage of

Number of total issued

ordinary shares shares

RIEFRAF Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited 180,030,681 50.01%
(5£1)(Note 1)

RIBHWEARR AR Tian Teck Land Limited 180,030,681 50.01%
(3£1)(Note 1)

SEIBA Cheong Kheng Lim 25,589,715 711%

(3£2)(Note 2)

WE & Lim Yoke Soon 25,589,715 7.11%
(£x2)(Note 2)

B Notes:

(1) 1B BB B A5 &0 £ 336 (5 M TE B IR 1D FE 25 KA B & 5 (1) The register of interests and short positions in shares kept under section 336 of
MER - REARABFMHENESEREHESR the SFO indicates that the interest disclosed by Tian Teck Investment Holding
A FEH9180,030,681 I (D4R © Co., Limited is the same as the 180,030,681 shares disclosed by Tian Teck

Land Limited.

@ BEMN LA ENESEMNEBELTHED 2 The interest disclosed by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim is the same as the
25,589,715R% f% 17 48 [F) » # 25,589,715 1D - 25,589,715 shares disclosed by Ms Lim Yoke Soon. Out of the
24,555,715R R EEBARE A H54E - 1,034,000/% 8 & 25,589,715 shares, 24,555,715 shares were held by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim,
HEBHEBELZ T8 - and 1,034,000 shares were held by his spouse, Ms Lim Yoke Soon.

bk FIFTIREEIN R_E—NFE=/A=+—H Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, no other interests or short

NN B SR A0 B 8 1 o] B4 (R 38 R 35 A 6 71 positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company required to be
F336IE M B ERE T ME AR A TR A REAR recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO

MEERIAE - have been notified to the Company.
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EEHE SRS

A% B S S R AR R T B 28 )4 4 B
AEEEMNE R ETIEAAAANEFE
BRI R EATIENEE AL -

EEEN

@ AQRHEEERAR — REMWEARAA
1A EmEAR eI TIRTS R IEF TR TS 5% ©
REZE W - AR BREAEKRA AIRE
FEITRIRFG a3 T A R E R RIEIET
BRI HE THRAZREREE - AQA)
REBE_Z-—NEFZF=+—HIFERN
EUCER ) AR 75 & FH 4258 /58 51,200,000 7T
(ZZ=—=% : #%1,200,0007T) °

(o) AAREBERITYEEREERAR([EHE
R1TER] T ER G o BIBHE - AER
TEAEERESH —MEFRMEERE
(BT EMEBEM RIS IRIN) - ZERHZ
BT ——F)\ANBREH+ @A -
HeEGFaEH AR REGHZ
it -HE—T-—NF=A=+—HI
FEARABEXNNERENE BB
600,0007L(=ZZF— =4 : &#600,0007T) °

B DA TR EEE SN - AR RRAFE AL A
BTN EREBEGRETERLINEE
aHY -

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its controlling
shareholders or any of their subsidiaries was a party, or in which a director of
the Company had a material interest (whether directly or indirectly), subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

(@) The Company has an administrative services agreement and also
a non-administrative services agreement, each for an indefinite
period, with its immediate holding company, Tian Teck Land Limited,
whereby the Company agrees to provide, respectively, company
secretarial services (under the administrative services agreement)
and office space and various staff (under the non-administrative
services agreement). The aggregate fees received by the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2014 amounted to HK$1,200,000
(2013: HK$1,200,000).

(b) A management agreement exists between the Company and DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Property Management Limited (“DTZ”) whereby
DTZ is responsible for general building and property management
(except for the services relating to tenancy) of iISQUARE. The
management agreement was renewed for a term of twelve months
commencing on 6 August 2012 and shall be automatically renewed
on an annual basis thereafter, subject to the right of termination
by the Company. Manager’s remuneration of HK$600,000
(2013: HK$600,000) was paid by the Company for the year ended
31 March 2014.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company was entered into or existed during the year.
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ARAREMBEARER - HE
HEEIH ETES

AEER AR AHIETNER DL HEE -
i EREEAR AL LTS -

BIEEMHRAE13.51B)E 2R
EMmEHIKE

AR CHEEBER I EmMES - THESNE
E-ET-NE=ZA=+—HUIFEZES=HeHE
B FEE IR

— EERREZHE AE®K22550007T ¢
BV 7 #60,0007T °

— SEBMEE S BE¥3,6750007T ¢
W 7 278,000 7T © 7 7 # 3,675,000 7T
o EEE2,001,000C (2 — =4 « B
3,220,0007T ) 2 48 A B AN Al ph B A
EECIPEFTNRBE M

— SEMELE S BB 1,843,000 ¢
W 75 107,000 7T © 7E 78 #1,843,000 7T
o 1,743,000 (2 — =4 « B
1,757,0007T ) RIZE L £ AR A R E B F
RECRFFTNIRB A LM

— S#MEEZIE BE¥E2,129,0007T
W 75 382,000 7T © 7 7 # 2,129,000 7T
o 1,797,000 (2 — =4« B
1,743,0007T ) R IZE L E AR R E B F
RELRFITNRBAOMZ

—  EIAR/MEZ B e A7 955,000t ¢ R A
JEI£46,0007T ©

BEHR RS - ARABEXNAGRER LK
BRI HE Y o

Purchase, Sale or Redemption by the Company
and its Subsidiaries of its Listed Securities
There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed

securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

Due to allowances for expenses actually incurred, the directors’ emoluments
of the following directors for the year ended 31 March 2014 have changed

when compared with those for the last financial year:

— Mr Cheong Hooi Hong’s emoluments decreased by HK$60,000 to
HK$2,255,000.

— Mr Cheong Kheng Lim’s emoluments decreased by HK$278,000 to
HK$3,675,000, of which, HK$2,991,000 (2013: HK$3,220,000) was
covered by his service contract with the Company as chief operation

officer.

— Mr Cheong Keng Hooi's emoluments decreased by HK$107,000 to
HK$1,843,000, of which, HK$1,743,000 (2013: HK$1,757,000) was
covered by his service contract with the Company as chief project

officer.

— Mr Cheong Sim Lam’s emoluments decreased by HK$382,000 to
HK$2,129,000, of which, HK$1,797,000 (2013: HK$1,743,000) was
covered by his service contract with the Company as chief investment

officer.

- Miss Cheong Chong Ling’s emoluments decreased by HK$46,000 to
HK$955,000.

Despite the above changes, the Company’s policy regarding the said

expenses has not changed.
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IRITE R EMETK

ZA/NS]PS PN @W:%*Eﬁzﬂ =+—HAR
TERLHMEN - FIERN B mRM 2%
24 o

hFBEEE
AEBRBERAEYREFENEEREERARE
MEHNAREREI19EEFE1208 ©

RIRETE
A IR IRE BRI B B R N 27

BHARE

XE
ERARATARAEHMZEMRBARTESS
FREZE  BEXRFRBMABL - KRR —HAER

ERRAETHZA

RFFE

B MR

RIEETHRANEIASMGE - ARFC R BB
FRTEFFMEBIENEAFERE - AAA
RRERBFNTESFORBIAL

ESEHWE
BRAAREENEEFBEGR(RANER
(RRNEGI(F622F) 2 ER)RIEBM - LER
BE_Z-HNF=A=+—HIOBEVHFE
BRL -

Bank Loan and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank loan and other borrowings of the Company and the
Group as at 31 March 2014 are set out in notes 22 to 24 to the financial

statements.

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on pages 119 to 120 of the annual report.

Retirement Schemes
Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 27 to the financial

statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the

Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive

directors to be independent.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year
ended 31 March 2014.
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SEACHDEHHEAGER - HEEREE -
o 9 5 L T 0 A P £ 28 ) 4 B 0
3 NS BRNRE A AR LR

EEEEW
E
Ege

B —F-mERA=1RA

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A

resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2014
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

HITES

EEBERE 675 HAR— LA\ EEH
—NANZ=FHRBEERARTMKEHESRAF
ITHERES  MEREARRMXELEARA
ATREBHERREXRZEBEER  RNTAKRE
BRABNAEEZHMBARES - EiE
B ARMNESTMASE B R IME ST
ee 8 - WiEARIMRoyal Melbourne Institute of
TechnologyRa 3 RHSUR B AR BB TN
EEERNEEFEREEGBANTFHEFL

BEERAEREFEEMLLE EFERELE
NERBLABPEENILE

EWMEE 655 B - NL\TFERHHE
AARBERERES  TONR—NAN=FM
—NANFRBREERBMESRAREIEFEM
B% tRKEARFRLEELERARRNRE
WEARAPIRBZEGKE  ASTAXREAR
RARNAEEZEMNBARES -

BEMELEREREEELL EFEMELL
NERELRMALENNS  YAERERK/E
HIALHR ©

ERBLEE 615 RN —ANHFEM
—NN=FFREEARRMRIEHERR QA
B pEALRARILE  ARTAXEEAR
REAMAEEZHMBARES - BELEFHE
BRABTRHERRLEM -

BEELRERERBELL  EFBEMEL
NERBRBTER IS -

Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, aged 67, has been the Chairman and a director
of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983
respectively. He currently is the Chief Executive Officer and the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. He
is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and various
subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong is a member of both the CPA Australia
and the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore. He holds a
diploma from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in Commerce. He
has extensive experience in property development and investment both in

Hong Kong and Singapore for over 40 years.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Kheng Lim, Cheong Keng Hooi

and Cheong Sim Lam.

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, aged 65, has been the Deputy Chairman and a
director of the Company since 1984. He has been the Deputy Chairman and
a director of Tian Teck Land Limited since 1983 and 1969 respectively. He
currently is the Chief Operation Officer of the Company and a member of
the nomination committee of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited.
Mr Cheong is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited

and various subsidiaries in the Group.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the father of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, aged 61, has been a director of the Company and
Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively. He is the Chief
Project Officer of the Company. He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong
holds a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration from the University of

Hawaii.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Sim Lam.
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BITES®w

EREEE 55 - » AR — N\ E AR
—NN=FHRREERRRMREHESR AR
BF  MEARARELR  ARTARNERR
NEINMAEEZHNBARES - EXEERE
A FKapiolani Community College & &1 & & %75
& WHEBBR=TIUFMNITIEES

BRAMELREFERELL  EFBEMEL
NERBIMBLRENDRS -

EHERME 435 R ANEFIMAERRR
WHEEEEE - B/ MNER _SELFRB LT
RABRREWEARATESE - MEBRNRFT
BT o 48/ MARE B R TR BB ETHIE

BB -

BRI/ MARERBRMEEN LR -

FHTES

HHEBEE  REEEEHE - 785 0 AR
—hN\RFER—AN\OERBHEARBMRE
WEERARES BRREARRAMREBHE
ERAREZZEGNFHEZEGNKE - HELE
BRESRMEAFA  BERBASBXSZELE
i e R —NANRFE-NNRFEHESRE
HRGAER » YR —NNLFE-ANNFR
HEEEBMARXSMBRARERE  WEREE
FEZEEREAHAE I HZREERBRRER
EeEREEeELR  UATRBAERE
LEBEEHGNTLEGAERE -

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr Cheong Sim Lam, aged 55, has been a director of the Company and
Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively. He is the Chief
Investment Officer of the Company. He is also a director of Tian Teck
Investment Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group. He
obtained a certificate in Accounting and General Business from Kapiolani

Community College, Hawaii and has over 34 years of working experience.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Keng Hooi.

Miss Cheong Chong Ling, aged 43, joined the Company as an assistant
to directors in 1997. She has been a director of the Company and Tian
Teck Land Limited since 2007. She is the Chief Administration Officer of the
Company. Miss Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of Science from the

School of Hotel Administration at Cornell University.

She is the daughter of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, a director.

Non-executive Director

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, OBE, aged 78, has been a director of the
Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1985 and 1984 respectively. He
currently also serves on the audit committee and remuneration committee
of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Sin is a solicitor and a
notary public and holds a degree of Master of Arts from the University of
Cambridge. He was Chairman of Kam Ngan Stock Exchange from 1985 to
1986 and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 1987 to 1988.
He was a former Chairman of the Home Ownership Scheme Committee
and the Management Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Authority and
a former member of the Urban Council and the Executive Committee of the

Housing Society.
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BMIFHTES
AEB/KE 585 0 R _TEMFMBEER
REAMREWERRARIBILIEATES - BE
NHERRRMRBHMEERAREREZE S
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.
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SAERE -

HEBRLE > 735 R-TEEFRBEELRAR
RIMRIEMERR R RBILIFATESE - BRI
RARBMREHERRAAEZLZE S - FH
ZEGNMREZESKE - hELEAEERER
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FERIEATIRED - RSB ER L EREA -
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, aged 58, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 2004. He
currently also serves on the audit committee (as chairman), remuneration
committee (as chairman) and nomination committee (as member) of the
Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Chow has significant experience
in accounting and finance and has been an Associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since 1983 and an Associate
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia since 1988 and is a

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam, aged 73, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 2004. He
currently also serves on the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Yau
has extensive legal knowledge and experience. He qualified as a barrister
in England in 1964 and practised as an advocate and solicitor in Singapore
and Malaysia, and as an advocate in the State of Brunei before coming to
Hong Kong. Mr Yau was admitted to Hong Kong Bar in 1985 and practised as
a barrister until 2001.

Mr Lee Chung, aged 40, has been an independent non-executive director of
the Company since 2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr Lee holds a degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering from Colorado
School of Mines in the United States and a MBA degree from the University
of Warwick in the United Kingdom. He has extensive experience in venture

capital and property investment in the United States, Israel and PRC.
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Senior Management

Miss Chan Mei Yee, CPA, aged 37, is the accounting manager of
the Company. She holds an honours degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration and a degree of Master of Arts from City University of Hong
Kong. She has nearly 14 years of experience in accounting and auditing.
Prior to joining the Company in 2004, she worked for one of the big four

accounting firms.

Miss Susan Chan So Some, aged 63, joined the Company in 1987 and
has been the financial controller since 1990. Prior to joining the Company,
Miss Chan was a chief accountant of the Company’s ultimate holding
company. She has over 34 years of experience in accounting and financial

management.

Mr Choi Ming Kwan, aged 57, joined the Group in 1981 and has been the

Company’s project manager since 1990.

Ms Ng Sau Fong, ACIS, ACS, aged 44, holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms Ng joined the Company in 1992 as
assistant to directors and has been the company secretary of the Company

and Tian Teck Land Limited since 2004.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Shareholders of
Associated International Hotels Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Associated
International Hotels Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to 118, which comprise the consolidated
and Company balance sheets as at 31 March 2014, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 80 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been

properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 June 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement
BE-Z-—NE=A=+—BILEE(UBE%DI’R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2014
Tt
$°000
=E 2 Turnover 3 606,262 518,878
RS AR AR Cost of services (67,368) (67,824)
EF Gross profit 538,894 451,054
EH WA Other revenue 5 3,813 4,866
E e F58 Other net income 5 33 18,208
THER Administrative expenses (40,024) (38,517)
REVELEESSH Profit from operations before valuation
& BRI changes in investment properties 502,716 435,611
BEYEHBERT Valuation gains on investment properties 13(a) 965,544 2,369,058
REVMEMLELEEZ Profit from operations after valuation
EOFRE= Pyl changes in investment properties 1,468,260 2,804,669
BEERAR Finance costs 6(a) (3,048) (2,257)
RRBE AR Profit before taxation 6 1,465,212 2,802,412
Frig®t Income tax 9(a) (82,914) (68,832)
NEERRREN Profit for the year attributable to
REEBEF equity shareholders of the Company 10 1,382,298 2,733,580
SREFN —EXREE Earnings per share — basic and diluted 12 $3.84 $7.59

F558 2 F118EMM B AN SHRERMN—2 5 o The notes on pages 55 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
BRAFE G T A ARSI RS BT Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
BAKIEET - attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 11.
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METHEHEBERER
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BE-Z-NE=A=1+—HLLEE(LUBEFIR) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2014
Fr
$°000
REFEER Profit for the year 1,382,298 2,733,580
AEEHMPEWA (MBRHIER Other comprehensive income for the year
BREFHDEAERE) . (after tax and reclassification adjustments):
HEgAgEEN D B EIBEH Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
BEH : profit or loss:
— BN B A BB — Realisation of exchange reserve upon liquidation
SNEREZER of overseas subsidiaries — (18,355)
REEXHB AL Total comprehensive income for the year 1,382,298 2,715,225

F55B 2 F118B R I B AN IEHmERN —5 D The notes on pages 55 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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BEEEEX
Balance Sheets
R-ZE—ME=A=+—H(UB%EIR) At 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AN

The Company

The Group

@ Associated International Hotels Limited &5 BB B E B R A &

ERBEE Non-current assets
BTEEE Fixed assets 13
— KRB — Investment properties 13,375,140 12,425,250 13,280,140 12,338,750
— HtbE - BE — Other properties, plant
B and equipment 94,206 100,832 94,206 100,832
13,469,346 12,526,082 13,374,346 12,434,582
RPN o) Interest in subsidiaries 14 - — 31,096 51,162
13,469,346 12,526,082 13,405,442 12,485,744
REEE Current assets
FEWERFK - 7T 2 Accounts receivable, deposits
PSSEIRE and prepayments 16 25,591 31,458 25,572 31,407
INERFEUL RIS Current tax recoverable 9c) = 3 = -
EEARITFER Pledged bank deposits 17 244,580 262,550 244,580 262,550
BE MR EEBEY Cash and cash equivalents 18 209,917 139,365 208,779 118,286
480,088 438,376 478,931 412,243
REBBE Current liabilities
RITER — AR Bankloan — secured 22 - 200,000 - 200,000
EHfh et N EsH B A Other payables and accruals 19 58,925 77,612 58,900 77,297
BT € Deposits received 20 176,229 167,255 174,930 165,956
REIBRTS & % Provision for long service
payments 21 1,520 1,573 1,520 1,573
FERTHT B A AR IE Amount due to a subsidiary 15 - — 19,484 17,483
BMERERE Obligations under finance leases 23 34 4 34 41
NERFES RIS Current tax payable 9(c) 29,625 23,184 29,541 23,184
266,333 469,665 284,409 485,534
REBEE(AF) Net current assets/(liabilities)
FE 213,755 (36,289) 194,522 (73,291)
EEABERARE Total assets less current
aE liabilities 13,683,101 12,489,793 13,599,964 12,412,453



BEAER Balance Sheets
R-Z—MWE=A=+—H(UB%IR) At 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AEH AN
The Group The Company
2014 2014
Fr ST
$°000 $°000
kREBERB Non-current liabilities
RITER — AR Bankloan — secured 22 200,000 — 200,000 —
BT E Government lease premiums
payable 24 2,091 2,143 2,091 2,143
BEMERE Obligations under finance leases 23 4 38 4 38
FIEFIEG & Deferred tax liabilities 9(d) 39,675 32,579 39,365 32,292
241,770 34,760 241,460 34,473
EEZRE NET ASSETS 13,441,331 12,455,033 13,358,504 12,377,980
EXR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES 25
AR Share capital 25(b) 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000
B Reserves 13,081,331 12,095,033 12,998,504 12,017,980
AR TOTAL EQUITY 13,441,331 12,455,033 13,358,504 12,377,980

EEGR T WUFANA T NBERELRT A - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2014.

= 7E Cheong Hooi Hong Cheong Kheng Lim
EEE $EHEM Director Director

E55B ZF118B MM B AMBEREN—3 D The notes on pages 55 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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mEERBER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-_Z-NE=A=1+—HBLLEE(LBEFIR) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

DARERRRES
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
& Efifif INERRE EXGE RE&EH
Share  Revaluation Exchange Capital Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve earnings
T T i i Tr
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
R2012F4B1AM4E  Balance at 1 April 2012 360,000 1,778,150 18,416 155,663 7,787,579 10,099,808
FEEERED Changes in equity for the year:
REEEF Profit for the year - - - - 2733580 2733580
Hh2EBA Other comprehensive income - - (18,416) 61 - (18,355)
FAMAER Total comprehensive income - - (18,416) 61 2,733,580 2,715,225
BONHBATEREH  Release upon liuidation of overseas
et subsidiaries - - - (155,724) 155,724 -
B —HRER Dividends approved in respect of
HENRS the previous financial year (o) - - - - (198,000) (198,000)
BRNABBER Dividends declared in respect of
SRAOBRE the current financial year 11(a) - - - - (162,000) (162,000)
- - (18,416) (155,663) 2,529,304 2,366,225
M2013E3A31AR Balance at 31 March 2013 and
2013F4R1 B ISR 1 April 2013 360,000 1,778,150 - - 10,316,883 12,455,033
FEEERED Changes in equity for the year:
REEHF Profit for the year - - - - 1,382,298 1,382,298
Hiy2ERA Other comprehensive income = = = - - _
2ERNEE Total comprehensive income - - - - 1,382,298 1,382,298
B —RER Dividends approved in respect of
BAENRE the previous financial year 11(b) - - - - (198,000) (198,000)
BRAHHEE Dividends declared in respect of
TIRERE the current financial year 11(a) - - - - (198,000) (198,000)
= - - - 986,298 986,298
R2014E3R31 A4  Balance at 31 March 2014 360,000 1,778,150 - - 11,303,181 13,441,331

FEEEF8ENWEBAMBHREN —3D -

The notes on pages 55 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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GERERER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BE-ZE-—NE=A=+—BILEE(UE%DI’R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2014
T T
$°000 $°000
REEE Operating activities
B 58 Al A Profit before taxation 1,465,212 2,802,412
FEIBR - Adjustments for:
— FLEHA — Interest income (2,088) (2,928)
— BB AR — Finance costs 3,048 2,257
— e — Depreciation 9,646 9,428
— REYEMERF] — Valuation gains on investment
properties (965,544) (2,369,058)
— REETEE — Net (gain)/loss on disposals of
(&F),EE fixed assets
FRE (69) 101
— SN 1R — Foreign exchange loss 58 193
— BINHB A — Realisation of exchange reserve
TE RN SMERE upon liquidation of overseas
B subsidiaries - (18,355)
(954,949) (2,378,362)
EEESEHA Operating profit before changes
R RF in working capital 510,263 424,050
FEURERSR « BT &% Decrease in accounts receivable,
TERFUR D deposits and prepayments 6,062 8,451
HiERT % BETE  Increase/(decrease) in other payables
i, Cd) and accruals 360 (573)
BRG] 21 N Increase in deposits received 8,974 30,717
REIRIS S 2EER ) Decrease in provision for long
service payments (53) (28)
JEASH IR T H0 B Decrease in government lease
premiums payable (50) 47)
15,293 38,520
KEEIEFTBMEE  Cash generated from operations 525,556 462,570
[EANE 2 Tax paid
— BN EENER — Hong Kong profits tax paid (69,374) (78,343)
— BREEINEIE — Overseas tax refunded - 7
(69,374) (78,336)
K EEBBMIE  Net cash generated from operating
FE activities 456,182 384,234
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FERELHRER Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BE-ZE-—NE=A=+—BILEE(UBE%FI’R) For the Year Ended 31 March 2014 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

REEH

BHAE

BABEEENK
(T EEREME)

REME AR

REBTEEMS
IR
EHEMIRITERR D

REFDAEBNRES
B

BMEES
ENREEEEEH
BARE S

EN BB ERE

EEERITER
FTBIRITER
FR1SRIA

B RITERFE
B EAD SR A
EXfRE

BMEFBTANRE
Pk :C

RERREEEY
BnEE

Investing activities

Interest received

Payment for purchase of fixed assets
other than investment properties

Payment for expenditure on
investment properties

Proceeds from disposals of
fixed assets

Decrease in pledged bank deposits

Net cash generated from investing
activities

Financing activities

Capital element of finance lease
rentals paid

Interest paid on government lease
premiums payable

Repayment of bank loan

Proceeds from new bank loan

Interest paid on bank loan
Other borrowing costs paid
Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing
activities

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

7A2013/201254 A1 B Cash and cash equivalents

NHRERAESEEY

INEERSHNTE

MIANBEMHRER
BEEEY

at 1 April 2013/2012
Effect of foreign exchange rates
changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 March 18

2014
F T
$°000 $000
1,893
(3,026)

(3,146)
75
17,970

13,766
(41)
(109)
(200,000)
200,000
(2,331)
(857)
(396,000)

(399,338)

70,610

139,365

(58)

209,917

3,166

(980)

(13,105)

1
13,802

@1

(112)

(1,963)
(201)
(360,000)

2,884

(362,317)

24,801

114,757

(193)

139,365

FEEEF8ENWEBAMBHREN —3D -

@ Associated International Hotels Limited slE¢EIREE B R A T

The notes on pages 55 to 118 form part of these financial statements.



g S E
Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1

FTESFBE

@

BHREH

A BHRERESRBES SR
BROMEERN(EBNERE?
A F e EmMaERaEIE
B HREER) (BB EER
M2RB)NEAELARSTRAUNEATE
e AMBHRENDFEEB(AT
TEB1) 88 A E Sk (IR B R TR BB
CRENEBIN(FE622F ) R11ET76E
STIRIESUANB BBHIT IR E KEaT
FIEE M RIRE R HRETE - A
WERAATHEE R B REER
BiEA AR BRI (ZE32F ) #I4R
EMELHE) o NI K RE R
AEAR(EEHERHMARAT
FHEMARADEERE - ATEAR
SERANEZSHEREBME -

m\ﬁm$

A

BR G AGRA T E TR

RIETHCRBMBHRERED) - %F
HAEAREEMALNRE A ST

BEREMHAHIERERA - T2
TE B BT 0A IE P I L B R S [ AR R
I BRI AE # R AR/ Z 1
Frol BB A FAE &5t BB & 5T I
REBNEF

1

Significant Accounting Policies

(@

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, which for this financial year and the comparative
period continue to be those of the predecessor Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and saving
arrangements for Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out
in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out

below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and

prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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B EXME Notes to the Financial Statements

(L% ¥%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FESHBR@
b) HBHERGENLE

E-T-TIFE=A=T—BILFE
E’%ﬁ/—\ﬂﬁ*#&?@i@%$®§]ﬂ%w%
Bl A EE)) -

S 1(0) B B A 2 R B R R
BEMERED A BENES - BE
ST
ey

A (EAPBHREERDOMBHRE

iR BEEEANFEBRNER
REHREE - BE - WAMHOHK
BIEHHE - AEAARR - BLefbat
FHERRERBEATERNEIRE
REZERBEARSAIENZHELMEA

EEHE  EARBRTEREEE

EREEMEEARSHNEERAR

EORRE(E RS PTIE L HIBT A 258 - B
BEA RIS AT 8 -

18 e T e B = IR AT AERE R
R MR EEHHETAVER
%*,Hﬂﬁ Hy 2@ et Eneg
R MREFTHE AR KRS E
T8 - AEERERT BRI A AR R H
IR ©

==
TR ERE

@ Associated International Hotels Limited slE¢EIREE B R A T

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2014 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries

(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
investment properties are stated at their fair value as explained

in the accounting policies set out in note 1(d).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.



(L% 5|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1

FEETHER @

(©

ERjz- NG
MBAREHEIAEEEHNES -
BEAEEESEERERT AR E
OB ERIALEEZTATE
E1R - BARL A BRI RN
MEEZFLERE - AR/ ANEE
EHZER - A AEERLTHES
LN REB(REEMEM
TR AR EERER -

SENHE QR ENEG A BT
IS B ERIEHIRK LR AR
EMBHRRPEAFE - SREANE
RH)ERER - EWEB*%%MEEU 8
MEEENARSEIRGN I EREGA
MRS 2K - RENIRS
FHF‘EE’PK AR BRI TR EUR
EEREBRRRNEE
aﬁﬁ%ﬁ&i%ai%%ﬁﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ@%ﬁ
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ZARE RN AR E 18 (26
BEET ()(i) B AR o

1

B ZXME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(©

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive

rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(h)(ii)), unless

the investment is classified as held for sale.
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B &K Notes to the Financial Statements

(L% ¥%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FESTTEER @ 1

d) REWE
BEMEREARDASWA R, K
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(ZRIMEE1 (D) B T3 SR EEY)
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BEEET )0 AT 7T FARR
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MEREWART N EBURERER
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WEESNEE S HIERE TR o

Associated International Hotels Limited slE¢EIREE B R A T

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(f)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value, unless they are still in the course of construction or
development at the balance sheet date and their fair value
cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted

for as described in note 1(0)(i).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(f)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as

described in note 1(f).

Other properties, plant and equipment
Other properties, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation (see note 1(g)) and impairment

losses (see note 1(h)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other properties, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss

on the date of retirement or disposal.



(%% %|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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B ZXME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leased assets

()

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of

transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines

that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset

or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment

or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based

on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is

regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note 1(d)); and

land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.
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(L% ¥%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1
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Associated International Hotels Limited slE¢EIREE B R A T

B &K Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(f) Leased assets (Continued)

(i

(il

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included
in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely that the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(g). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1(h)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an

investment property (see note 1(d)).



B | EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% 5|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(9)

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of other

properties, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual

value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

— Land and buildings Over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more

than 40 years after the date of

completion
— Furniture, fixtures 5 years
and equipment
— Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of other properties, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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B 8|EHMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% ¥%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FESTHEER@ 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(h BERE (h) Impairment of assets
() FEUR BR B AN HE 4th B U Z Y () Impairment of accounts and other receivables

VERIEL

FEBEBEEEEBERES Accounts and other receivables that are stated at cost

AEHE R AN R AA or amortised cost are reviewed at each balance sheet

B B FE Y5 BR SR EL At R UK - date to determine whether there is objective evidence of

NHEEEEATEMNRER impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes

B BENSEBEERREASE observable data that comes to the attention of the Group

BF BRI —EZIEEE about one or more of the following loss events:

S AR EE

— EBARBAERNTER —  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
L

—  ERAY - iR EEE —  abreach of contract, such as a default or
ZRFMESAS delinquency in interest or principal payments;

—  EEAREEERESHE — it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
s ES K bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— Bilf - w5 - OBESOEE —  significant changes in the technological, market,
RIERIREERABRE economic or legal environment that have an

HENEREE) o adverse effect on the debtor.
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B | EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(%% %|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FEESHEXR@® 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(h) EBEBRE®E (h) Impairment of assets (Continued)
() JEUER KA E fth fE MR A ()  Impairment of accounts and other receivables
THE(E) (Continued)

EEMERERFE - AR
EERIRAT T B E MR

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

A DA B P AN A PR ) R L
RFMEM RS -
WITRFEER - RIEK
BB ERIAEERNRE
BEAHERAEERENX
(BIEIRERBBERE
et EE BER A R ) IR
MR RRERERE
ZREMEEE - %F
TREEABRUNRR
e PIangairyE 315
SR AR E B MRS
HWE - ABEENFEER
FrfErT - KRFHERED
EREENARIRERE
EREEZARERAF
BUEERREBNEE
HBEERERHE -

N RR BRI E AR A
R - B8 LR
EERRERREENEMF
BREE - QIR E R,
EEE - BEBRELE T
JEfE B EMIRE EBBE
A2 A HERIER
BEREMECEENE
o

— For accounts and other receivables carried
at amortised cost, the impairment losses of
bad and doubtful debts are measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment

loss been recognised in prior years.
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B 8|EHMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% ¥%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1
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HEEMME - BE LR EM
EARREEBBRANRKH
BRBRWRER B LB BED
R RN ERERHRERE
TBEEXAEDERD -

1

@ Associated International Hotels Limited slE¢EIREE B R A T

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(h)

U

Impairment of accounts and other receivables
(Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of accounts receivable,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
accounts receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that
other properties, plant and equipment and investments
in subsidiaries in the Company’s balance sheet may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased.



B | EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(%% %|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FESHEEm@) 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(h) EBEBRE®E (h) Impairment of assets (Continued)
iy HBEEREGE) (i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

IMREBREMERIR - BIZ
BENFEIEEE T ARG -

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

REDEEE 6

BEMNAKREEEAEA
REBEREEREKAER
SHEMEEREEMRE
RV E R - HAHE
EREER - 2ERARM
GIERE RS SR PN e
MEWRERE  ZINR
R &R AR TS 8 B FTRT
N EERREENZE
ENEERR - MREE
FEEHRERAER £
TEINEMEEMESE
WIREMA - RILABEIEL
EERSRANRNEE
ERI(BNREEEETT) K
T AR DI BIER

HERRER S

WMREESMBRSESL
BRI E S E AT
CIEFER - BEEEET
ERRERR - RRTE
EFETRERHIRERR
SIRLEHIRDZET (K
ZABEITT)AEENRE
B BEEENREETS
WMAOEERREERIRAE
BB AR ERAR TSR
Bt 8 )N HEERE
BE(INEEETE) o

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows

independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use

(if determinable).
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B EXME Notes to the Financial Statements

(L% ¥%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals

are recognised.

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts (see note 1(h)()), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost

less allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts.

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash

flow statement.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(1)

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs

involving the payment of termination benefits.

(m) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in

respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.
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(L% ¥%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Associated International Hotels Limited slE¢EIREE B R A T

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(m) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.
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(%% %|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(m) Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(d),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the balance sheet date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.
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(L% ¥%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FESFHEER @ 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(m) Fri3%icaE) (m) Income tax (Continued)
REAFRET B SR R S B E s Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
FYIR - WA T o ANEFFELE movements therein, are presented separately from each
MIBEERGERRRINAERFE other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
EITEREARNEAT I8 E E R AN AT current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
TBEEE  WABFE U THEEENS tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
ST AR A B SE AN HA AR RE RS enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
HAEE: tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:
— ZFKHBRBEEMEE: AQF — inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
i$’§ Bt 8l FREEEL Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
A ERZEAEMNSE net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
EQE\TE\ Pk simultaneously; or
— BREMBEEENAE G E&8 —  in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
EMEENEER—F ISR relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
AT HAP — BRI TSR authority on either:
B
— [FA—EHEE: X —  the same taxable entity; or
—  TENEHER - G&E —  different taxable entities, which, in each future
BrrEE R R EEEE period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
REELEHTBEERTEE liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
B RFRIEERIBEER recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
LAY B R BRI A - 1205 R and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
AEEIRABHIEEEMN or realise and settle simultaneously.

BEABRHEERE - XE
RERZEEMEEZEA

f& -
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B ZXME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.
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B EXME Notes to the Financial Statements
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(P)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange

reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss

on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.
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1 EFESTEHEX@ 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
r FEBEA () Related parties
@ —BATHZATHREIR (@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
WRAEESAEBNBEES @ W related to the Group if that person:
BT
) HAEBEEZEHESNER () has control or joint control over the Group;
T
iy BAEBEERTES: (i)  has significant influence over the Group; or
B3
iy RAEBENAEBEFAF] (i) is a member of the key management personnel of
HEREIEAR o the Group or the Group’s parent.
b) —EAEERNFAETMEIIE ()  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
- BIWRAEANERE /R conditions applies:
L
() ZEEHRAALEEHAER ()  The entity and the Group are members of the
—SEMKE(BIZEA same group (which means that each parent,
G =YNSIFIIEES )= subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
NSIEGAdiap=ne) others).
iy —(EAEBRS—EBAE (i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
BARNAEERE (IR other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
B—EEFEEEETK member of a group of which the other entity is a
ERBEARIHAZD member).
¥) e
iy METEHER—F=7H (i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
G ERE - party.
vy —EAEERE=FEEN (v)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
BEME ME—EEE the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
ZEZHEBEENBER
S
() ZEBIEAASEENEAR () The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
EEERABNEENES the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
T iR R B 1 R A AT entity related to the Group.
EE
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1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vl A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority

of these criteria.



B | EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% 5|7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 BIBENEH 2 Changes in Accounting Policies

BAGHMAGEM T ZENKEBYE The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments

WEEBNDACE B IS TREZEREHEET - to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of

B TR TSR] E A S B AR 5] & AT HY the Group and the Company. Of these, the following developments

SEHHEREIRER « B - LATER|E are relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

REBMIEHREEA

—  (BREERDE1RAEET 5 ® —  Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
FHEY — Hih2EWABENE — Presentation of items of other comprehensive income
3]

— (BAMBHREEN)FE10%R 4568 —  HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements
k]

— (BBMBWELERN)EI1RIALE —  HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement
Bt &

— (BB HREER)2009F £2011 —  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
FIRMNF o

AEEWERAEAEE TS ETERE M ARE The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that

TREYFAER SR IE o ANEE LRI S L& is not yet effective for the current accounting period. Impacts of the

FIRCEBI GRS ERDZEmulian T adoption of new or amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

(@) (EBEASTERDE1FRIER (a) Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
[T Z25 — Hith e financial statements — Presentation of items
HIAEBEWZ% ] of other comprehensive income
EEETEE  MEMEZEWAIERE The amendments require entities to present separately
FAEBETFEETERERKREEFD LA the items of other comprehensive income that would be
%5 AEEBIEZE 18 Bk reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions
SENHSHEEENEME2EKAIE are met from those that would never be reclassified to profit
BENH2% - AMBRENESEE or loss. The presentation of other comprehensive income in
BRERESHEMmE2EmRARSEE the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in these
TR o financial statements has been modified accordingly.

Annual Report 2013-2014 &£ e




B EXME Notes to the Financial Statements

(L% ¥%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial
Statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements, relating to the
preparation of consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC
12 Consolidation — Special purpose entities. It introduces a
single control model to determine whether an investee should
be consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity has power
over the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and the ability to use its power to

affect the amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has
changed its accounting policy with respect to determining
whether it has control over an investee. The adoption does not
change any of the control conclusions reached by the Group in

respect of its involvement with other entities as at 1 April 2013.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13
also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and non-financial
instruments. To the extent that the requirements are applicable
to the Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in note
13(c). The adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have any material
impact on the fair value measurements of the Group’s assets

and liabilities.

The other developments have had no material impact on the Group’s

financial statements.

e Associated International Hotels Limited slE¢EIREE B R A T
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B | EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Turnover

The principal activity of the Group is property investment.

Turnover represents gross rental income received and receivable from

investment properties.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only one
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenues. During the year, revenue from this customer amounted to

approximately $89,154,000 (2013: $67,947,000).

Segment Information
The Group has a single reportable segment which is “Property
leasing”. Accordingly, the business segment information for this sole

reportable segment is equivalent to the consolidated figures.

No separate geographical information is presented as the Group’s

revenue and results of property leasing were derived from Hong Kong.

Other Revenue and Net Income

2014
T
$°000
Hig A Other revenue
FEMA Interest income 2,088 2,928
W ATIWERERER  Management fee received from holding company 1,200 1,200
Hith Others 525 738
3,813 4,866
Hih st $ 58 Other net income
BN B A BB REREAY Realisation of exchange reserve upon
INEREEEIR liquidation of overseas subsidiaries - 18,355
BEETEE Net gain/(loss) on disposals of fixed assets
BF,(E518) 5% 69 (101)
SN S B 1R 8 Net foreign exchange loss (58) (193)
Hith Others 22 147
33 18,208

Annual Report 2013-2014 &£ 6




B 8|EHMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(L % 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6 BRBIBNEF 6 Profit Before Taxation
BREATSEFEIR(GTA) - Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
2014
T
$°000
(@) ®ERAX (@) Finance costs
IRITERAE Interest on bank loan 2,045 1,947
FERBUFHB LB Interest on government lease premiums
payable 108 110
HAE A A Other borrowing costs 895 200
3,048 2,257
(b) BIE (o)  Staff costs
e TEREMEF Salaries, wages and other benefits 37,178 37,536
FERFERIKRGT B Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 1,058 1,091
38,236 38,627
(c) EHMEE (c) Otheritems
BEMENESWALERE Gross rental income from investment
properties (606,262) (518,878)
B B Less: Direct outgoings 67,368 67,824
(538,894) (451,054)
FEWERFUREE 1B Impairment losses on accounts receivable = 1,252
% E AR & Auditor’s remuneration
— ZERTE — audit services 685 640
— AR — tax services 53 129
— H RS — other services 173 167
e Depreciation 9,646 9,428

@ Associated International Hotels Limited slE¢EIREE B R A T




B | EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 EEME 7 Directors’ Remuneration
BEFHEBCRAEDN)(F622F) Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of Schedule
MIR115E 781K » WRRBIEBCRA TED) 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with
(F32E)F161ETHMMESHMS T ¢ reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

E2c A= 4: BIR 2014
EEHWe REYAR BIETEAL BBt BE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
T T T T T
$000 $°000 $°000 $000 $000
HITES Executive Directors
EE Cheong Hooi Hong 50 1,505 700 = 2,255
BB Cheong Kheng Lim 50 2,904* 700 21 3,675
EIE Cheong Keng Hooi 50 1,493 300 - 1,843
feede) Cheong Sim Lam 50 1,779 300 - 2,129
B Cheong Chong Ling 50 765 120 20 955
FHITEE  Non-executive Director
VEAERE Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 50 380 - - 430
BYFEHIT  Independent Non-executive
S Directors
B Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 170 - - - 170
25 Yau Allen Lee-nam 170 - - - 170
A Lee Chung 170 - - - 170
810 8,826 2,120 M 11,797
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B 8|EHMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 EEMEw 7 Directors’ Remuneration (continued)
BEFHEBCRAEDN)(F622F) Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of Schedule
MIR11E 781K - WARRBIEBCA BMED) 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with
(EB3RE)F161EHIFRMESME T « (8) reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows: (Continued)

e - ERL RIK
REWMH & NFEAEL ST SR
REEUES

allowances Retirement

Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme

fees in kind bonuses contributions
T T T+ Tt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

HITES Executive Directors

FEE Cheong Hooi Hong 50 1,565 700 - 2,315
BB Cheong Kheng Lim 50 3,182" 700 21 3,953
fed iy Cheong Keng Hooi 50 1,600 300 - 1,950
o) Cheong Sim Lam 50 2,161 300 - 2,511
BEr Cheong Chong Ling 50 812 120 19 1,001

JEHITEE  Non-executive Director

Hia R Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 50 380 — — 430

BYFEHIT  Independent Non-executive

S Directors
AEE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 170 - - - 170
25 Yau Allen Lee-nam 170 — — — 170
EI/N Lee Chung 170 - - — 170
810 9,700 2,120 40 12,670
* EHRETEEREEMEERBEEEDE * The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of residential
M AE R - f st A E S 2 #9/ 3,210,000 7 properties to Mr Cheong Kheng Lim with an aggregate estimated

—Z— =4 : 3,066,0007T) °
& rental value of approximately $3,210,000 (2013: $3,066,000).
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B | EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8 EmmaMEAL 8 Individuals with Highest Emoluments
—E-ZFELRCE-FEFERNERHNE The five highest paid individuals for 2013 and 2014 are all directors of
MATHAERNRGINES @ BB 5EHP the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7.

MizE7 ©
9 FIEH 9 Income Tax
(@) HmEBBRKRFIRWATERHE (@) Taxation in the consolidated income
B statement represents:
2014
Srow
$°000
AHBIE — FEREH Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax
REFEHIALEM Provision for the year 75,771 61,348
NTFELEEDZ Under-provision in respect of prior years 47 183
75,818 61,531
EERIE Deferred tax
R ERENEENED Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 7,096 7,301
82,914 68,832
BEAFERERZIRAFE MGG The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5%
JESFRRE R A16.5% (T —=4F : (2013: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
16.5% ) HITEEHHE o
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B EXME Notes to the Financial Statements

(L % 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 mMEHw@
(b) PTEBZHMIZERAFER
EE2DRANE R

9 Income Tax (continued)
=t (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

2014
Fr
$°000
BR 7% A& F Profit before taxation 1,465,212 2,802,412
ZREABAERES Notional tax on profit before taxation,
A EAREGE calculated at the rates applicable to
FRA% AR M) B EIHIE profits in the countries concerned 241,760 462,395
AR BB 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 599 384
DA RN ENHRERE Tax effect of non-taxable income (159,492) (394,130)
NEFEEETR Under-provision in prior years 47 183
ERHES S Actual tax expense 82,914 68,832

) BEEEEXRMTANAHRE

(¢) Current taxation in the balance sheets
represents:

rEH b N
The Company

The Group

2014 2014
T T
$°000 $000

RNEEEBFIEF  Provision for Hong Kong

P profits tax for the year 75,771 61,348 75,347 61,008
B EHFER  Provisional profits tax paid (46,146) (38,167) (45,806) (37,824)
29,625 23,181 29,541 23,184

K& : Representing:
AREAFEWFTSHL  Current tax recoverable - @) - -
RNEAFEMFTSRL  Current tax payable 29,625 23,184 29,541 23,184
29,625 23,181 29,541 23,184

e Associated International Hotels Limited &5 BB B E B R A &




B | EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 FrEH e 9 Income Tax (continued)
d) EERELHRIEAE : (d) Deferred tax liabilities recognised:
() A&EH ) The Group
DEGEEEAERERNE The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised
FEFRIE B E R AERER D FIAR G in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements
EEEMT during the year are as follows:

BB ITER
HERHE

Depreciation

allowances
in excess of
the related

depreciation

Fr
$’000

RE T EERELERIE Deferred tax arising from:
20124 751H At 1 April 2012 25,278
Bz kR Charged to profit or loss 7,301
M201353H31H At 31 March 2013 32,579
M2013F4 /18 At 1 April 2013 32,579
EiEm PR Charged to profit or loss 7,096
R2014F3A31H At 31 March 2014 39,675
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B 8|EHMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 FrE% e 9 Income Tax (continued)
d) EEREZEHREES : @) (d) Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (Continued)
iy ARF (i)  The Company
EHEEEBERERNELTN The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
BEENAEKI D MAFEEE the balance sheet and the movements during the year
B are as follows:

BB ITER
HERHE

Depreciation

allowances
in excess of
the related

depreciation

Fr
$°000

RE T EERELERIE Deferred tax arising from:
201294818 At 1 April 2012 25,014
ez kR Charged to profit or loss 7,278
R2013F3H31H At 31 March 2013 32,292
MR2013F4A81H At 1 April 2013 32,292
EEzEF kR Charged to profit or loss 7,073
R2014F3A31H At 31 March 2014 39,365

10 PRAIEEBREEMLAFE 10 Profit for the Year Attributable to Equity

Al Shareholders of the Company

DA EmBRRELMEEENBE—FE The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
B AR X B] BA 7§ 3R % #91,376,524,000 7T Company includes a profit of $1,376,524,000 (2013: $2,700,803,000)
(ZZF—=% :2,700,803,0007T )@ & ° which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

@ Associated International Hotels Limited &5 BB B E B R A &




B | EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11 RE 11 Dividends
@ AFEENFLAAEZRE (@) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
iz 2 the Company attributable to the year
2014
Fr
$°000
BEIREZAFHRE Interim dividend declared and paid of
FR%0.557T $0.55 per share
(20134 : Ff&0.457T) (2013: $0.45 per share) 198,000 162,000
REEQABREERBES Final dividend proposed after the balance
7R AR EAR B & /%0.607T sheet date of $0.60 per share
(20134 : &A%0.557T) (2013: $0.55 per share) 216,000 198,000
414,000 360,000
REEABRGEEREREZEDRAR The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has
HREMAREEEREREEAER not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.
RAfE -

b) BERE—UHFEENAT (b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders
DR WRREEHRE of the Company attributable to the previous
REAHRE financial year, approved and paid during the

year

2014

Srow

$°000

BRE—UBFE - IR Final dividend in respect of the previous

REFEREAE N T Y financial year, approved and paid during
REANE B =A%0.557T the year, of $0.55 per share
(20134 : #AR0.557T) (2013: $0.55 per share) 198,000 198,000

= . . .

12 BREN — EXREE 12 Earnings Per Share — Basic and Diluted
BERNBINRZEZBAFENRQ G The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
W = B% B OFE (5 & 7 1,382,298,000 T attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $1,382,298,000

—ZF— =4 :2,733580,0007T) & B #7T (2013: $2,733,580,000) and 360,000,000 (2013: 360,000,000)
v 3% i f% 360,000,000 i ( =& — = 4F : ordinary shares in issue during the year. There were no potential
360000000 ) 5t & - —FE —=F & dilutive ordinary shares in existence in 2013 and 2014,

TN BB A EE A o
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B 8|EHMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(L % 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 BEEEE 13 Fixed Assets
@ A%H (@) The Group
REMs 2% - BERRE
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HERFER
BENE Hftx HthEE Nt it
Properties held
for leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
i i i i r
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
KA EE : Cost or valuation:
20134 A1H At Apr 2013 12,425,250 100,464 31,866 132,330 12,557,580
BE Additions 2,157 - 3,026 3,026 5,183
KARE Cost adjustment (17,811) = = = (17,811)
RE Disposals - - (816) (816) (816)
MrBERE Fair value adjustments 965,544 = = = 965,544
P2014F3A318  At31 March 2014 13,375,140 100,464 34,076 134,540 13,509,680
% Representing:
KA Cost - 100,464 34,076 134,540 134,540
f&E—2014%F  Valuation — 2014 13,375,140 - - - 13,375,140
18,375,140 100,464 34,076 134,540 13,509,680
ZEHE - Accumulated depreciation:
20134 A1E At Apr 2013 - 17,196 14,302 31,498 31,498
KEEWE Charge for the year - 3,444 6,202 9,646 9,646
RERER Written back on disposals - - (810) (810) 810)
72014%3A318  At31 March 2014 - 20,640 19,694 40,334 40,334
REFE: Net book value:
P2014E3A318  At31 March 2014 13,375,140 79,824 14,382 94,206 13,469,346
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B ZXME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 BElEEE®m 13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(@ A*&EE@ (a) The Group (Continued)

T.
Investment

properties Other properties, plant and equipment

Htbx

ROWEEE
for leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total
T T i T
$000 $000 $000 $000

BAREE : Cost or valuation:

201294 A18 A1 Apri 2012 10,047,350 100,464 31,598 132,062 10,179,412
#e Additions 8,842 - 980 980 9,822
KE Disposals - - (712) (712) (712)
AREERE Fair value adjustments 2,369,058 - - - 2,369,058
M201343F31H  At31 March 2013 12,425,250 100,464 31,866 132,330 12,557,580
% Representing:
AR Cost - 100,464 31,866 132,330 132,330
fHE—20135  Valuation — 2013 12,425,250 - - - 12,425,250
12,425,250 100,464 31,866 132,330 12,557,580
ZiHRE ! Accumulated depreciation:
20124 B18  At1 April 2012 - 13,752 8,928 22,680 22,680
TEERE Charge for the year - 3,444 5,984 9,428 9,428
RENED Written back on disposals - - (610) (610) (610)
M2013%3A31H  At31 March 2013 - 17,19 14,302 31,498 31,498
REFE: Net book value:
M20134%3A31H  At31 March 2013 12,425,250 83268 17,564 100,832 12,526,082
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B 8|EHMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(L % 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

NN .
13 EEEE @) 13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) ZA&QF] (o) The Company
REMs 2% - BERRE
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HERFER
BENE Hftx At EE Nt it
Properties held
for leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
T i i i i
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
HAHMEE Cost or valuation:
20134 A1H At Apr 2013 12,333,750 100,464 31,866 132,330 12,466,080
BE Additions 2,157 - 3,026 3,026 5,183
KARE Cost adjustment (17,811) = = = (17,811)
RE Disposals - - (816) (816) (816)
DhEBERE Fair value adjustments 962,044 = = = 962,044
P2014F3A318  At31 March 2014 13,280,140 100,464 34,076 134,540 13,414,680
% Representing:
AR Cost - 100,464 34,076 134,540 134,540
f&E—2014%F  Valuation — 2014 13,280,140 - - - 13,280,140
13,280,140 100,464 34,076 134,540 13,414,680
ZEHTE - Accumulated depreciation:
2013E4A1E At Apr 2013 - 17,196 14,302 31,498 31,498
KEERE Charge for the year - 3,444 6,202 9,646 9,646
RERER Written back on disposals - - (810) (810) 810)
72014%3A318  At31 March 2014 - 20,640 19,694 40,334 40,334
REFE: Net book value:
P2014E3A318  At31 March 2014 13,280,140 79,824 14,382 94,206 13,374,346
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B ZXME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 BElEEE®m 13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) DT (@) (b) The Company (Continued)

T.
Investment

properties

Htbx

ROWEEE
for leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total
T T i T
$000 $000 $000 $000

BAREE : Cost or valuation:

H2012F4 18 At1 April 2012 9,968,450 100,464 31,598 132,062 10,100,512
#e Addttions 8,842 - 980 980 9,822
KE Disposals - - (712) (712) (712)
AREERE Fair value adjustments 2,356,458 - - - 2,356,458
M201343F31H  At31 March 2013 12,333,750 100,464 31,866 132,330 12,466,080
% Representing:
AR Cost - 100,464 31,866 132,330 132,330
fHE—20135  Valuation — 2013 12,333,750 - - - 12,333,750
12,333,750 100,464 31,866 132,330 12,466,080
ZiHRE ! Accumulated depreciation:
20124 B18  At1 April 2012 - 13,752 8,928 22,680 22,680
TEERE Charge for the year - 3,444 5,984 9,428 9,428
RENED Written back on disposals - - (610) (610) (610)
M2013%3A31H  At31 March 2013 - 17,196 14,302 31,498 31498
REFE: Net book value:
M20134%3A31H  At31 March 2013 12,333,750 83268 17,564 100,832 12,434,582
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B 8|EHMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% ¥%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 EEEE @)

(©

BYENDIAEETE

BE

RZEBE-—NF=R=+—H KREY
XERERES HEIXKEN
ETEMRBREESTON—E - K
MEBRBUNE BN BEREZHN—
CTETERENETEM - W
BEEYE -

DA BERBR

TRENAEEREERER
RERREEEEMTEN
BREWMERAAEE - ZFVE
ERARKEBHBHREEA)
F1SR[ AR EEFEINFEN
“EAREBEER - AKES
RIA T ETDER SRR EA
ENABERREEMESZE 1
MEE AR EETEREME
WOBREAR -

—  FEMME: REME
—ERBAE(DE 2
AR R RS AIERARE
%8 ERFERERE)
e DN s

— F_BAMLE: ERE=
BB AE(RIRES—
BRmaEREAR)
WARBERME AR T A H
R AERAEARE
8 - TRBRBAERE
RRTSBIENBAE

— FZEAMLE: RAEX
AR B R ABRGTE

13 Fixed Assets (continued)

Fair value measurement of investment
properties

At 31 March 2014, investment properties comprise iSQUARE,

()

@ Associated International Hotels Limited slE¢EIREE B R A T

certain units of Good Luck Industrial Building and a floor of Euro

Trade Centre. Other properties comprise a floor of iISQUARE,

certain units of an industrial property, and two residential

properties in Hong Kong.

U

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties measured at the balance sheet
date on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at

the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which

market data are not available

— Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs
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13 @Eﬁ%(ﬁé) 13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(c) WREVENRAABETZ@) (c) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

0] NABEEBLE) 0} Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
REBERARNBWEB AR R None of the Group’s and the Company’s investment
BEIENREDEREEZSE properties measured at fair value are categorised
—EBREE_EBRILEE - WE into Level 1 and Level 2 valuations. The investment
HMEF-ERIGENREDE properties which are categorised into Level 3 valuations
DHTEAT - are analysed as below:

EE AAF
The Group The Company
n20145 H20145F
3A31H 3A31H
At 31 March At 31 March
2014 2014
Fi Fr
$°000 $°000
REEEEMTTEN Recurring fair value
AREE measurement
WEREEE=BREMEN  Investment properties categorised into
EWE Level 3 valuations:
— R BEENEEDE — Commercial properties in Hong Kong 13,327,300 13,232,300
— R EBN T EME — Industrial properties in Hong Kong 47,840 47,840
13,375,140 13,280,140
REE_Z-—MF=A=+—H During the year ended 31 March 2014, there were no
IHFEE EF—EBHEE— transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into
BHzETELRER MY or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
FEZERTEEALEL - K transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy at the
SEHNBEREEAREBERER balance sheet date in which they occur.
ZEEEEPNEERERS
EAEREEES
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13 BEEEE®m
(c) WREVENRABETZ@) (c)

(i) fHERRF
RZZE-—mNE=RA=+—H -
NREENREMERH —H
B HERMAER — BRITEE
AEERBERAR(EEIRA
BEBHNEMBEERER L
Big - BHREGBZMERE
(VAEQNEE VR R R G iE) o
&) ETTENR - B TIAER
MEZTER/ER - EEED
B b (B A =T A 7 & {8 P B AN 4R
E#E AETHENRERME
2o

(i) BRAABEED

W
¥ |

REBMREARFZENEE @ B
MENFHSBAEARE - I
ERIMELAERERAM
WERBEHBESRANE
e LEBEREADEND
REME - EANTAEREA
BHEIAT

13 Fixed Assets (continued)

Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i)

(il

Investment properties

Valuation process

The investment properties in Hong Kong were revalued
at 31 March 2014 by Vigers Appraisal And Consulting
Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers
who have among their staff Fellows of The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of properties being valued, on a
market value basis. Management has discussion with
the valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at each interim

and annual reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

The fair value of investment properties was determined
using income capitalisation approach which capitalised
the net rental income of the properties and taking into
account the occupancy rate and reversionary income
potential of properties after the expiry of the current
leases. The significant unobservable inputs are set out

below:

B ENEE

Range of

HERNEE
Range of

capitalisation rate occupancy rate

TR EBNEEYE  Commercial properties in Hong Kong  2.89% — 5.00% 100%
NREBITEME Industrial properties in Hong Kong 4.00% 100%

REMENAAEBEFERN
MR ELREER - BREXR(
PE AR LR

@ Associated International Hotels Limited slE¢EIREE B R A T

The fair value measurement of investment properties
is positively correlated to the occupancy rate and

negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate.



B | EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 @EEE(E) 13 Fixed Assets (continued)
() BREVENAIAEBETE@E (c) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)
iy FZEBRAAEBEFTEND (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
BERHE) (Continued)
AFEEANE=ZERAREBEL The movements during the year in the balance of these
FREVEENIAT - Level 3 fair value measurement are as follows:

AEE
The Group
REEI UREEE
[GEZ/ES TR
Commercial Industrial
properties in properties in
Hong Kong Hong Kong
T Fr
$°000 $°000
R2013F4/81H At 1 April 2013 12,385,900 39,350
RE Additions 2,157 -
PR AT Cost adjustment (17,811) =
DR EEHAE Fair value adjustments 957,054 8,490
20143 A31H At 31 March 2014 13,327,300 47,840
AT

The Company
LREEH LREEN
[GEZ/ES TEYE
Commercial Industrial
properties in properties in
Hong Kong Hong Kong
T T
$°000 $°000
201354 H1H At 1 April 2013 12,294,400 39,350
HE Additions 2,157 —
PR AT EE Cost adjustment (17,811) =
AR EEFAR Fair value adjustments 953,554 8,490
201453 HA31H At 31 March 2014 13,232,300 47,840
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13 EEEE @) 13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(c) WREVENRABETZ@) (c) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)
iy F=EBHRAAEBEBET=EH (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
ERHE) (Continued)
HEMEN R BEFERIEL Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
EETRNIEEYELHER recognised in the line item “valuation gains on investment
F 1T E RER - AEFEENER properties” on the face of the consolidated income
HPEROFAEGERTG K statement. All the valuation gains recognised in profit
BEASBREEBERAZER or loss for the year arise from the properties held at the
REOmE - balance sheet date.
d) YIFEREFEMNINET : (d) The analysis of net book value of properties
is as follows:
TEH AT
The Group The Company
2014 2014
T Fr
$°000 $°000
EEE In Hong Kong
— REEE — Long leases 101,942 98,863 6,942 7,363
— P HEE — Medium-term leases 13,353,022 12,409,655 13,353,022 12,409,655
13,454,964 12,508,518 13,359,964 12,417,018
(e) HmEEBFEGM RE  RERA (e)  Other assets comprise fumiture, fixtures, equipment and motor
= vehicles.
() REEABEXREERD  AEENRE (f) At the balance sheet date, the net book value of office
HERBNRAEXBEEREEDFES equipment held under finance leases of the Group was $34,000
34,0007c(=ZF—=% : 75,0007T) ° (2013: $75,000).

Associated International Hotels Limited &5 BB B E B R A &
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13 EEEE @)

)

REFACERERLRENE - &
EHRESYVARNEETS LEA
ORI HIRBER - ERATEIE
HEAEFEE - BE_T—WF
=A=+—HBIEFERNBERTER
AW AR A £ 514,697,000 7T
(ZZ—=4 : 18,054,0007T) °

S ERERERERMTEEHNE
REMEXTEROMEME  BENR
RIREME -

REBRBEIAIBRHEEHEER
RERNSERENKEREMNT

13 Fixed Assets (continued)

(9)

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of two to ten years,
with an option to renew the lease after that date at which time
all terms are renegotiated. Contingent rentals recognised as
income in the income statement during the year ended
31 March 2014 were $14,697,000 (2013: $18,054,000).

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of investment property are classified as

investment property.

The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases are receivables as follows:

AEE F NG|
The Group The Company

2014 2014

Fr T

$’000 $°000
1R Within 1 year 503,321 460,533 500,575 457,787
1181855 R After 1 year but within 5 years 393,077 622,419 390,331 616,926
5F1& After 5 years 5,385 18,982 5,385 18,982
901,783 1,101,934 896,291 1,093,695

EEEKH (h) Pledge of assets

REEBBEXREER  HRITERR
LABR I {E A 13,304,416,000 T ( =&
— =4 1 12,369,430,0007T) H) & &
BEEAER(26MHE22) -

At the balance sheet date, fixed assets with carrying value of
$13,304,416,000 (2013: $12,369,430,000) were pledged to

secure the bank loan (see note 22).
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14 RIHBRARER 14 Interest in Subsidiaries
AT
The Company
2014
T
$°000
FE TR (R AR Unlisted shares, at cost 31,084 31,084
e Ny NGIE O Amount due from a subsidiary 46,996 67,015
B R(EEE Less: Impairment losses (46,984) (46,937)
12 20,078
31,096 51,162
JEWHIBARZIBRREET R8T Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and has no
ElE R - EZ/TJXIE R T ER—FE AR fixed repayment terms. The balance is not expected to be recovered
[g o within one year.
TRINEAEBAENBRGE - BSEE The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the
ERRESN TR B RRM Y BT @R o Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.
SER AR L ERTRAE HAATRBEN
R RAZFEE b R 2 Lk 1
Proportion of
Place of ownership
incorporation Particulars of issued and interest held by
Name of company and operation paid up capital the Company Principal activity
Associated International Resorts Limited &7 2/ 100% TNER
Hong Kong 2 shares Inactive
wEBRAA EiE 200,0008% i 5 100% NERE
Diamond Town Limited Hong Kong 200,000 shares Property investment
= xhH .y
15 FE{SFT A BIFIE 15 Amount Due to a Subsidiary
ZHOEBEEELER - WHIRBRNRNRE The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
3\% o

@ Associated International Hotels Limited &5 BB B E B R A &
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16 FEUWER ~ RT & RFER 16 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments
ANEH b NN
The Group The Company
2014 2014
Fr SEoe
$°000 $°000
FEUBR R Accounts receivable 20,239 23,073 20,239 23,073
W RIBIREMS Less: Allowance for bad and
(MF5E16(0)) doubtful debts (note 16(b)) (1,252) (1,252) (1,252) (1,252)
18,987 21,821 18,987 21,821
HEDSSEIE N Deposits and prepayments 6,604 9,637 6,585 9,586
25,591 31,458 25,572 31,407
(@) BRERDMT (@) Ageing analysis
REEBBERGEER @ BEETERKEE The ageing analysis of accounts receivable (net of allowance
R RFEMRANERER(E for bad and doubtful debts) which was included in accounts
MR REBRER) MR DT receivable, deposits and prepayments as of the balance sheet

date is as follows:

AEERALNTE
The Group and the Company

FSakl Current 18,758 20,992
# R RA{E A Less than 1 month past due 225 574
BWHI1E3MEA 1 to 3 months past due 3 239
AR A3(E A More than 3 months but less than
BLR12(EA 12 months past due 1 14
18 BB @1 216 A More than 12 months past due =
By Amounts past due 229 829
18,987 21,821
RR—REFAEEYE  ERER Debts are generally due on the 1st day of each month and
H—RAEt+XE+HNX - @E2EUR 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or else interest will be
FIE - REBEERREMFBIER charged. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
REFFE26(a) ° in note 26(a).
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(L % 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
16 FEUWERR ~ RT & RFBN K@)

FEW AR FURE
REERNREEBEERESOT -

(b)

16 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

Prepayments (continued)
(b) Impairment of accounts receivable
The movement in the specific allowance for bad and doubtful

debts during the year is as follows:

AEERAKAF
The Group and the Company

12013/2012%451H At 1 April 2013/2012 1,252 577
EERREERE Impairment losses recognised = 1,252
[ma = ENEIREIE g Uncollectible amounts written off — (577)
M3A31H At 31 March 1,252 1,252

RZZE—NFE=ZA=+—H0 £&HE
K AR A FE MR R AR 2 1R B )
T AR E R BR 5 Rl 1,252,000 7T
(=% — = 1,252,000 JT )
§1,252,000 L ( = T — = F
1,252,0007T) ° Ak - B ERL
RIZRFEEEED 5 /1,252,0007T
(ZZ — = 4 : 1,252,000 7T )
§1,252,000 L ( = T — = F
1,252,0007T) °

@ Associated International Hotels Limited &5 BB B E B R A &

At 31 March 2014, the Group’s and the Company’s accounts
receivable of $1,252,000 (2013: $1,252,000) and $1,252,000
(2013: $1,252,000) respectively were individually determined
to be impaired. Consequently, specific allowance for bad
and doubtful debts of $1,252,000 (2013: $1,252,000) and
$1,252,000 (2013: $1,252,000) respectively were recognised.
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16 FEUERE s RFaH @) 16 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)

() REBENEWERR (c) Accounts receivable that are not impaired
S AE Bl S B REAR A 8 B R E Y R ULER The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither
REHERE AT ¢ individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

AEERARQF
The Group and the Company

K2 B RIE Neither past due nor impaired 18,758 20,992
wHE P {E A Less than 1 month past due 225 574
BE1E3ME A 1 to 3 months past due 3 239
8 BB A 3(E A More than 3 months but less than
BAoR12(EA 12 months past due 1 14
wHAB12(E A More than 12 months past due = 2
229 829
18,987 21,821
A BSOS BRI E N BRI R Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
e BEEREENERERER wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.
EEHER B REMEUR R A R Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
HREE A R EBT RN — BB number of independent customers that have a good track
P - BEERAS  BEATLR - record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
AR EEEXTEEANE @ MEH believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
RS R AT 28U E - PRIAZA of these balances as there has not been a significant change
FLULETIRRE S - in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.
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(8% 3)7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17 SRR ITERK 17
RZE-—MFER-TB—=F=RA=+—H"
RITERC AEER - WER—RIETRT

RISRTTE R (26KI:E22) -

18 WERIREEEY 18

Pledged Bank Deposits
At 31 March 2014 and 2013, bank deposits were pledged to a

designated bank to secure the bank loan (see note 22).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

REE AT
The Group The Company

2014 2014

F T

$°000 $°000
RITEHFR Deposits with banks 179,916 113,558 179,916 94,664
RITEREES Cash at bank and in hand 30,001 25,807 28,863 23,622
209,917 139,365 208,779 118,286

19 HitfENRKREGTER 19

Other Payables and Accruals

AEH
The Group

PN
The Company

BRTIEMNEASER Accruals and retention
R ERHREE = monies payable for
redevelopment work 43,687 62,735 43,687 62,735
Hip I T EA  Other payables and accruals 15,238 14,877 15,213 14,562
58,925 77,612 58,900 77,297

B B B R A B TR — PO
fit o

Associated International Hotels Limited &5 BB B E B R A &

All of the other payables and accruals are expected to be settled

within one year.
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20 2WET® 20 Deposits Received
FrEARERRANARNEWET BTN —F All of the Group’s and the Company’s deposits received are expected
B D B AZ132,694,000T( =& to be settled within one year except for $132,694,000 (2013:
— =4 : 135,803,0007T ) F1131,395,0007C $135,803,000) and $131,395,000 (2013: $134,504,000) respectively
—Z— =1 :134,504,0007T) ] & TEET which are expected to be settled after more than one year.

R—FRIFMBIBRID -

21 REIRIESESE 21 Provision for Long Service Payments

AEERADT

The Group and

the Company

T

$°000

R2013F4/81H At 1 April 2013 1,573

REF R Provision written back for the year (53)

7201453 H31H At 31 March 2014 1,520
REEECERIED) - ARBEERAR LR Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
AFHAEWE TIEFBAEE  ERLER to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
AR MR - BN ERREMET circumstances to employees who have completed at least five
BEEHF MRS ER - AR R BRI years of service with the Group. The amount payable is dependent
AENAREEELNHRCREE - A% on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
B8 B BRI E EEREAIRISRERD by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that is
B attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not

set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.
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22

IRITER — BEFA
RZE—NF=ZA=+—H " BITERNE
HHWT -

Bank Loan — Secured
At 31 March 2014, the bank loan was repayable as follows:

AEBMRADT
The Group and the Company

1FR Within 1 year — 200,000
1F&BE2FR After 1 year but within 2 years = —
2fF 12 {B5F N After 2 years but within 5 years 200,000 -

200,000 200,000

R-ZE—=F=ZA=1+—HBKEEMNRTE
FE200,000,0007T * ZAREER T —=F
+ A BB EE -

RZZ—=F+A+tH  AQAE—FRIT
#1327 — 174 #£800,000,0007T K 7 @k & 175
o RBITRERUN—MEER=Z—NF
= A=+—BEMEA13,304,416,000 7T

— T — =4 :12,369,430,0007T ) & T
ETEEE(2EME13() NE —EEX
ERREETRITFER(2HMF17)0E
—FERENESEAER - RZT—IF
=A=+t—H8 XAEENRTEXRA
200,000,0007T( = —=4F :200,000,0007T) °

o

AARMRITHEBCERITEARARBTNET
FREERBRIEXEMMRER T ER
A YR EARE—ERNRENRFE M4
RAERZEEH  RIRBMAEEEZD
RRNEER - ARRIEEHNERERECHN
BELHEE NIT-—MNEFR-_FT—=F
ZA=1+—8  ARRLEEREMERR
EEHRRMNEE

@ Associated International Hotels Limited &5 BB B E B R A &

The bank loan outstanding at 31 March 2013 amounting to
$200,000,000 was repaid upon the expiry of the facilities in October
2013.

On 7 October 2013, the Company entered into a new facility
agreement with a bank for banking facilities of up to $300,000,000.
The banking facilities were secured by a debenture incorporating
a first fixed legal charge over certain fixed assets (see note 13(a))
with carrying value of $13,304,416,000 as at 31 March 2014 (2013:
$12,369,430,000) and a first floating charge over certain bank
deposits (see note 17). At 31 March 2014, the outstanding bank loan
was $200,000,000 (2013: $200,000,000).

The Company’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the Company’s consolidated balance
sheet ratios and maintenance of capital at certain required levels. If
the Company were to breach the covenants the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Company regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. As at 31 March 2014 and 2013,
none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been

breached.
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23

mERERIE

RZE-—MF=A=+—H  AEERER

AMR B EAERMERMNT

23

Obligations under Finance Leases
At 31 March 2014, the Group and the Company had obligations

under finance leases repayable as follows:

KEBRAAT
The Group and the Company

RIXHEE RIXHEE
ARERE NREERE
Present Present
value of the Total value of the
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
T T FT T
$°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
156X Within 1 year 34 34 41 41
1F&E2FR After 1 year but within 2 years 4 4 34 34
2F £ {B5FR After 2 years but within 5 years = - 4 4
4 4 38 38
38 38 79 79
B BETIEX S Less: Total future interest expense = -
TAEAENRE Present value of lease obligations 38 79
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24 BENBTH(E 24 Government Lease Premiums Payable
RZZE—NF=A=+—8 ' ENEFHE At 31 March 2014, the government lease premiums payable was
BEFERN - repayable as follows:

AEBRARDT
The Group and the Company

1FR(BIEEEAMER R Within 1 year (amount included in

NIEFTERAN) other payables and accruals) 52 50
1F&E2FR After 1 year but within 2 years 54 52
2F B BESFN After 2 years but within 5 years 180 171
55 1% After 5 years 1,857 1,920
2,091 2,143
2,143 2,193

FERBUSHER SRR EESRTEUEEF Interest on government lease premiums payable is chargeable at a
FEeE(ZE—=F : 5[E)itH - fixed rate of 5% (2013: 5%) per annum on the outstanding balance.

@ Associated International Hotels Limited &5 BB B E B R A &
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25 BEXRNf#E 25 Capital and Reserves
(a) FERAMRIDHEE (@) Movements in components of equity
AEBIRA M S EHERE & B
MHEBREHRNER - JEREE
EREHR - NRARINFYIE TR
&R IR AR RSB D H B 1B 5 H a0

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of

the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity

R20126481H

Balance at 1 April 2012

T between the beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
AT The Company

BRA&  EfhEE

Share Revaluation

fRE & F

Retained

capital
T Fx T
$°000 $°000 $°000

reserve earnings

HAEER 360,000 1,761,266  7,915911 10,037,177
REE R K Profit for the year and

EHEWALREE total comprehensive income — — 2,700,803 2,700,803
B F—BIBAE  Dividends approved in respect of

HEAERI IS the previous financial year — - (198,000) (198,000)
BRRYBFEE Dividends declared in respect of

FIRMIARE the current financial year — — (162,000) (162,000)
7A2013%3H31H  Balance at 31 March 2013

%2013%4 818 and 1 April 2013

M AEER 360,000 1,761,266 10,256,714 12,377,980
IR E R R Profit for the year and

FHEWALLRE total comprehensive income - — 1,376,524 1,376,524
BN E—BIEEE  Dividends approved in respect of

BRI E the previous financial year - - (198,000) (198,000)
BRATBFE Dividends declared in respect of

EIRAIRLE. the current financial year - —  (198,000)  (198,000)
#2014F3H318  Balance at 31 March 2014

B AL BR 360,000 1,761,266 11,237,238 13,358,504
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(L % 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25 ERKfFEE @ 25 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(b) MBRA

EE - (5F1) Authorised: (Note 1)

FREET1TLZ  Ordinary shares of
E@A%(7E2)  $1 each (Note 2)

(b)

Share capital

2014 2013
BRADEE T Bein8iR

Number of shares $’000 Number of shares

- - 400,000,000 400,000

BR{TRME : Issued and fully paid:

TiER Ordinary shares

360,000,000 360,000 360,000,000 360,000

(1) HHEB(REEDD(F628) T H
BEEERANES  HHEIN=F
—ME= A= HRIBEMR -

@  REFOEB(REIGAN)(E622F)
F1351k - BT —WF=A=H
i ARRNRNTEHEREENKE
B - BEZHFETHEEITRONE
EREARRBEEZREVE -

BB E AR R REN S IR X
B AAEARBRE LEFHAE—
BB E—F « HRARANFBRE
B MAEBROE AR SRS -

@ Associated International Hotels Limited slE¢EIREE B R A T

Notes:

(1) Under the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
which commenced operation on 3 March 2014, the concept of
authorised share capital no longer exists.

2) In accordance with section 135 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Company’s shares no
longer have a par or nominal value with effect from 3 March
2014. There is no impact on the number of shares in issue or
the relative entitlement of any of the members as a result of this
transition.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank

equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
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25 BEXRKfFE@

(©

RENLEENRR

B {1 R IR A B BB 0
MEBHRS REMNEEBRY -
REECSRARKES  RERA
BEEMNER  EARENEGRS
RS HEEEARDERF - LEE
RS «

AEBEERIIVERFE - LRI
1(p) L) H IR B SME & I TS TR
FEEHER ZE S HRMERE -

BEARRREE-—RNBARETET
ERIEER T EERBIRMEAEE
1 5 B B8 72 BN AT 20 I B e 0% 355 0
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25 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(©

Nature and purpose of reserves

The revaluation reserve represents hotel properties revaluation
surpluses and other properties revaluation surplus recognised
in prior years. The hotel has been redeveloped into ISQUARE.
Upon the retirement or disposal of the properties, any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to

retained earnings. The reserve is non-distributable.

The exchange reserve has been set up and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of foreign operations in note 1(p).

The capital reserve represents the net increase in the Group’s
share of the undistributable reserve in a subsidiary pursuant
to the issuance of various classes of preference shares by a

subsidiary to preference shareholders.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2014, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as
calculated under the provisions of Part 6 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), was $1,756,633,000 (2013:
$1,738,153,000). After the balance sheet date the Directors
proposed a final dividend of $0.60 per share (2013: $0.55 per
share), amounting to $216,000,000 (2013: $198,000,000) (note
11). This dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the

balance sheet date.
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25 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(e)

@ Associated International Hotels Limited slE¢EIREE B R A T

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefit for other stakeholders, by leasing properties and
pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. The Group’s overall strategy
remained unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2014
and 2013.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing
ratio and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines gearing ratio as total bank loan over total equity as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet. As at 31 March 2014,
the Group’s gearing ratio was 1.5% (2013: 1.6%) with bank
deposits and cash exceeding total bank loan of $254,497,000
(2013: $201,915,000).
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26 KREREERAAEER 26 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
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Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in

the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the

exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Debts are generally due on the 1st day of
each month and 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or
else interest will be charged. Legal action will be taken against
past due debtors whenever the situation is appropriate. The
Group obtains deposits from customers (see note 20) as

collateral over accounts receivable.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting
any impairment allowance. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company to

credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set

out in note 16.
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26 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and an adequate amount of committed banking facilities

to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the

earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:
REE The Group
2014

EEGER  ANARR 15R5 BBIE it cpE:3
FEE RERESE BEEAR  EOWE {BHRSE BiB55

Balance Total More than More than

sheet contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
caying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5years 5years
1 17 15 i 17 17
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
EfERFUREER  Other payables and accruals 58925 58,950 58,950 - - -
BlETe Deposits received 176,229 176,229 43,535 97,240 33,443 2,011
AAREAR Obligations under finance leases 38 38 34 4 = =
PAEF—AHBA  Bankloan - secured 200,000 205,084 2,017 2,023 201,044 -
FENHE Government lease premiums payable 2,001 3,495 - 159 411 2,859
437,283 443,796 104,536 99,426 234,964 4,870

@ Associated International Hotels Limited slE¢EIREE B R A T
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26 FIEEREER A EE @) 26 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)
(b) REESEM @) (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
AEE(E) The Group (Continued)

BEARE
BEE HE IR IRy
Balance Total More than
sheet contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
camying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand PATCE 5 years 5 years
Tr T Tr Tr Tr Tr
$/000 $/000 $1000 $/000 $1000 $000
EtnERFRESER  Other payables and acoruals 77612 77,637 77,637 - - -
BT Deposits received 167,255 167,255 31,452 39,710 93,038 3,005
BERERE Obligations under finance leases 7 7 4 3 4 -
ROBF—BEAE  Bankloan- seoured 200,000 201,065 201,065 - - -
ENBE Government lease premiums payable 2,143 3,654 - 159 477 3,018
447,089 449,690 310,195 39,903 93,519 6,073
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26 FIEEREER A EE @ 26 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)
(b) REVELERE & (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
Vi N/NE]| The Company

2014
BERRR  AOKIR 1R BE1E fiferka
REE RERBAR REBNE  BOWF  BONSE i85

Balance Total More than More than

sheet contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
carying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2years 5years 5years
i i i i 7 i
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
AtEMNFRENER  Other payables and accruals 58,900 58,925 58,925 - - -
BT Deposits received 174,930 174,930 43,535 95,94 33,443 2,011
ERNBARZE Amount due to a subsidlary 19,484 19,484 19,484 - - -
BEMEAE Obligations under financ leases 38 38 3% 4 = =
RAEZ—EAAE  Bankloan- seoured 200,000 205,084 2017 2,023 201,044 -
ERBITHE Government lease premiums payable 2,091 3,495 - 159 477 2,859
455,443 461,956 123,995 98,127 234,964 4,870
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26 FIEEREER A EE @) 26 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)
(b) RENE 2 ) (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
AKRENE) The Company (Continued)

More than More than

contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
camying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
i S S S S T
$/000 $000 $1000 $000 $/000 $/000
EfEFUREER  Other payables and accruals 77207 77322 77322 - - -
BYETE Deposits received 165,956 165,956 31,452 39,710 91,739 3,095
ERHBARZE Amount due to a subsidlary 17,483 17,483 17,483 - - -
BAMEAE Obligations under finance leases 79 79 4 34 4 -
ROER—BEE  Bankloan- seoured 200,000 201,065 201,065 - - -
ENBE Government lease premiums payable 2,143 3,654 - 159 477 3,018
462,958 465,559 327,363 39,903 92,220 6,073
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26 FIEEREER A EE @ 26 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)
() FZEEpks (c) Interest rate risk
AEENFREREZREETE The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loan.
Ko FEBMIRITERE AR EEBET The bank loan borrowed at variable rates expose the Group to
RenEfEEak AEEEEEE cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as
TR R a0 ()Pt o monitored by management is set out in (i) below.
()  FIEHR () Interest rate profile
TRFAINEEABRAEER The following table details the interest rate profile of the
REE RAREBE KT ERE Group’s and the Company’s borrowings at the balance
A sheet date:

AEBRAEQT
The Group and the Company

2014 2013

(" TiEd EEFIE

Effective Effective

interest rate interest rate
% %

EEMER Fixed rate borrowings:

REEAIE Obligations under

finance leases — 38 — 79
FE BT H(E Government lease
premiums payable 5.00 2,143 5.00 2,193
2,181 2,272
FEMEN Variable rate borrowings:
RITER Bank loan — secured
— BEH 1.01 200,000 0.96 200,000
EEECtE] Total borrowings 202,181 202,272

@ Associated International Hotels Limited &5 BB B E B R A &
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26 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)

(©

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis
At 31 March 2014, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 25 (2013: 25) basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately $418,000 (2013:
$418,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date.
In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact
on the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2013.

Currency risk
The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as
substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated in

Hong Kong dollars.

Fair values
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair values as at 31 March 2014 and 2018.
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27 EERIKER

27 Employee Retirement Benefits
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The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administrated by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$25,000. In addition to the mandatory contribution, the Group makes
voluntary contribution at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant
income in excess of $25,000, subject to a maximum monthly income
of $35,000. Mandatory contributions to the plan vest immediately
while voluntary contributions to the plan vest at the time the
employees reach the retirement range, subject to certain conditions.
The staff costs in respect of staff employed by DTZ for building and
property management of iISQUARE are reflected in the Group’s

income statement.

During the year, forfeited contributions of $5,000 (2013: Nil) was
utilised to reduce the contributions payable for the year. No unutilised
forfeited contributions (2013: $1,000) had yet to be applied by the
Group at 31 March 2014.
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28 EIE 28 Commitments
RIE—F=A=+—HRENMXEKE Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2014 not provided for
BRI R ABEN EANFAENT - in the financial statements were as follows:

AEBMRADT
The Group and the Company

BAT4Y Contracted for 4,950 1,064
29 EEBARNMGRIEZEER 29 Immediate Parent and Ultimate Controlling

Party

EZERR AEER-_Z-—HF=A At 31 March 2014, the Directors consider the immediate parent and

=+ HNBEERSRRR&ERERTORR ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Tian Teck Land Limited

RIBWERBRARNMKEERAR  MRA and Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited respectively, both

AERBEMMKIL - BB AR SRR of which are incorporated in Hong Kong. The immediate parent

HAFRNMBRE - SRIEERAZERR produces financial statements available for public use and the ultimate

AT AFEF IR © controlling party does not produce financial statements available for
public use.
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30 Possible Impact of Amendments,

New Standards and Interpretations Issued
But Not Yet Effective for the Year Ended
31 March 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a few amendments and a new standard which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2014 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the following

which may be relevant to the Group.

EUT B#MH 2 &
BN ETTHBEER

Effective for accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BREEADERFNET eRIE : 27 —KiFeREELEHAE]

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation

— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

(BAFBRELA)EIReMTA

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

20141 A1H
1 January 2014

FEEGTMASED
To be announced by the HKICPA

RSB IEE TR G LeAE AT AN E R TR AT 41 47)
AERMBELNTE - BB RIALNGE
TR BRANIE LB AT AR E R A LR A B 75

BREBREBAZENAEETAK -
AN - ARBF BB R BEG)(£622F)

835815 - FOMARAIEE RETINAT
EARRRZZ—MFE= A=A 2 BB
BEMERFEEER(AARRRR T —F
mA—BMENMRFEE) o KAEEIEET
EFHEETHICA BHERI ) E BT S HE 1A FE
RGN EREMEENTE - 38
R AR EEENTEET TS
K BREBFERGAVBERENERS
FIFNHEE
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The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”, of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation from the Company’s first financial year commencing after
3 March 2014 (i.e. the Company’s financial year which began on
1 April 2014) in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
expected impact of the changes in the Companies Ordinance on the
consolidated financial statements in the period of initial application
of Part 9. So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be
significant and will primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure

of information in the consolidated financial statements.



EFEHBHE
Five Year Financial Summary
(8% 37R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

E 5 Results
2014
T
$°000
= 2] Turnover
— BB — Continuing operation 119,056 376,374 455260 518,878 606,262
— B (FE) — Discontinued operation (Note) 17,246 17,010 — — =

137,202 393,384 455,269 518,878 606,262

REYEMLERER  Profit from operations

F &R after valuation changes
in investment properties 2,776,964 1,036,679 533,468 2,804,669 1,468,260
RBhE A AN Finance costs (4,325) (9,175) (2,464) (2,257) (3,048)
BR B AR A Profit before taxation 2,772,639 1,027,504 531,004 2,802,412 1,465,212
Frg®t Income tax (7,904) (7,555)  (101,264) (68,832) (82,914)

REBFELE ZAREE  Profit for the year from

= continuing operation 2,764,735 1,019,949 429,740 2,733,580 1,382,298
RERIEEE ZAREE  Profit for the year from
A () discontinued operation (Note) 5,366 202,494 — — =
NEIRER R R EN Profit for the year attributable
REERF to equity shareholders of
the Company 2,770,101 1,222,443 429,740 2,733,580 1,382,298
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HEEFERBEME Five Year Financial Summary
(L % 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EEREE Assets and Liabilities
2014
Fr
$000
EEEE Fixed assets 9,173,836 9,961,016 10,156,732 12,526,082 13,469,346
REFIIRE B Deferred tax assets 7,284 — — — _
TREVEE,(BIE)FME  Net current assets/(liabilites) 597,378 974,498 170,626 (36,289) 213,755

9,778,498 10,935,514 10,327,358 12,489,793 13,683,101

IRITER — BEE Bank loan — secured (1,105,000)  (1,000,000) (200,000) — (200,000)
FET BT HE Government lease

premiums payable (2,284) (2,240) (2,193) (2,143) (2,091)
BT E AR Obligations under

finance leases (114) (120) (79) (38) (4)
RIETIEEE Deferred tax liabilities — (271) (25,278) (32,579) (39,675)
EEFRE NET ASSETS 8,671,100 9,032,883 10,099,808 12,455,033 13,441,331
&N Share capital 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000
G Reserves 8,311,100 9,572,883 9,739,808 12,095,033 13,081,331
ERAR TOTAL EQUITY 8,671,100 9,932,883 10,099,808 12,455,033 13,441,331

2 AEBERZZT——F-AZHEREEMRAERA Note: The Group completed the disposal of properties located in Malaysia on 2 March

TMYE  ZWEIZRRSRRNS L - BER 2011, mainly comprising the golf course land, the golf resort which was situated
mEBRRIKG T EOERRIKERN « EELHRF on the golf course land, the condominium land and the bungalow land. The
Bt o RERHER  NEENSBRIRESK Group’s golf and recreational club operation ceased thereafter.

EIRRERNAL L ©
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